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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2012

1.	 Corporate information

LT Foods Limited (the Company) is a public Company domiciled 
in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956.LT Foods Limited is primarily in the business of milling, 
processing and marketing of branded & non-branded basmati 
rice and manufacturing of rice food products in the domestic and 
overseas market. LT Foods Limited operations include contract 
farming, procurement, storage, processing, packaging and 
distribution. LT Foods Limited is also engaged in research and 
development to add value to rice and rice food products. LT Foods 
Limited rice product portfolio comprises brown rice, white rice, 
steamed rice, parboiled rice, organic rice, quick cooking rice, value 
added rice and flavored rice in the ready to cook segment.

2.	 Significant accounting policies

(a)	 Basis of preparation 

	 The financial statements have been prepared to comply 
with the Accounting Standards referred to in the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 issued by the Central 
Government in exercise of the power conferred under sub-
section (1) (a) of section 642 and relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956 (the ‘Act’).  The financial statements have 
been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical 
cost convention on accrual basis.  The accounting policies 
have been consistently applied by the Company. All assets 
and liabilities have been classified as current or non-currents 
per the operating cycle of the Company or twelve months 
as applicable, as per the guidance as set out in the Revised 
Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956.

(b)	 Use of estimates

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the 
disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of financial 
statements and the reported amount of revenues and 
expenses during the period reported. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting 
estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future 
periods.

(c)	 Revenue recognition

	 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it can be reliably 
measured and is probable that the economic benefits will 
flow to the Company.

Sale of goods:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant 
risks and rewards associated with the ownership of the goods 
are transferred to the customer and is stated net of sales 
returns, trade discounts and indirect taxes.

Business support services:

Income from business support services is recognised on 
accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the contract 

entered into in respect thereof.

Dividend:

Income from dividend is recognised when the right to receive 
dividend has been established.  

Interest:

Income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into 
account the amount outstanding and the applicable rate of 
interest.

(d)	 Fixed assets

	 Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment losses (if any). Cost comprises to purchase 
price and any attributable costs of bringing the assets to their 
working condition for their intended use.

	 Intangible assets are stated at the cost of acquisition less 
accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any.

(e)	 Depreciation and amortisation

	 Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on written down 
value method at the rates based on the estimated useful life 
of the asset which correspond to the rates in schedule XIV to 
the Companies Act, 1956.

	 Amortisation is charged over a period depending upon the 
expected useful life of an asset.

Depreciation rates used in Note No. 12 & 13 are as follows:

Assets Rate of depreciation
Factory buildings 10%
Building others 5%
Temporary structures 100%
Plant and Machinery (based on double 
shift)

20.87%

Plant and Machinery others 13.91%
Furniture and fixtures 18.10%
Computers 40%
Motor lorries 30%
Other vehicles 25.89%
Office Equipment 13.91%

Brand equity is amortised over a period of twenty years.

(f)	 Investments

	 Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held 
for not more than a year are classified as current investments. 
All other investments are classified as long-term investments.

	 Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value 
determined on an individual investment basis.

	 Long-term investments are carried at cost, however, provision 
for diminution in value is made to record other than temporary 
diminution in the value of such investments.

(g)	 Inventories 

	 Inventories are valued as follows:
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Raw materials, stores and spares and packaging materials

	 Lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on 
‘First In First Out’ basis and includes interest as a carrying cost 
of materials where such materials are stored for a substantial 
period of time.

	 Work in progress

	 At raw material cost and a proportion of direct and indirect 
overheads upto estimated stage of completion.

	 Finished goods

	 Lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost 
of raw materials, direct and indirect overheads which are 
incurred to bring the inventories to their present location and 
condition. 

(h)	 Foreign currency transaction

	 Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting 
currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the 
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the 
foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

	 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary 
items or on reporting company’s monetary items at rates 
different from those at which they were initially recorded 
during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, 
are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which 
they arise.

	 Monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in 
foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate prevailing 
at the date of balance sheet. The resulting difference is also 
recognized in the profit &loss account.

	 The exchange differences arising on forward contracts to 
hedge foreign currency risk of an underlying asset or liability 
existing on the date of the contract are recognised in the 
profit and loss account of the period in which the exchange 
rates change, based on the difference between:

	 i)	 foreign currency amount of a forward contract translated 
at the exchange rates at the reporting date, or the 
settlement date where the transaction is settled during 
the reporting period, and 

	 ii)	 the same foreign currency amount translated at the later 
of the date of the inception of the contract and the last 
reporting date, as the case may be. 

	 The premium or discount on all such contracts arising at the 
inception of each contract is amortised as expense or income 
over the life of the contract.

	 Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward 
foreign exchange contracts is recognised as income or 
expense for the year upon such cancellation or renewal.

	 Forward exchange contracts entered to hedge the foreign 
currency risk of highly probable forecast transactions and 
firm commitments are marked to market at the balance sheet 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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date if such mark to market results in exchange loss. Such 
exchange loss is recognised in the profit and loss account 
immediately. Any gain is ignored and not recognised in the 
financial statements, in accordance with the principles of 
prudence enunciated in Accounting Standard 1- Disclosure of 
Accounting Policies.

(i)	 Employee benefits

	 Provident Fund

	 The Company makes contribution to statutory provident 
fund in accordance with Employees Provident Fund and 
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 which is a defined 
contribution plan. Contribution paid/ payable is recognised 
as an expense in the period in which the services are rendered 
by the employee.

	 Gratuity

	 Gratuity is a post employment benefit and is in the nature of 
defined benefit plan. The liability recognised in the balance 
sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date.

	 The defined benefit/obligations calculated at the balance 
sheet date by an independent actuary using projected unit 
credit method. The actuarial gains or losses are recognised 
immediately in the profit and loss account.

	 Compensated absences

	 Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming 
due and expected to be availed within one year from the 
balance sheet date is recognised on the basis of undiscounted 
value of estimated amount required to be paid or estimated 
value of benefits expected to be availed by the employees. 
Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due 
and expected to be availed more than one year after the 
balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial 
valuation performed by an independent actuary using the 
projected unit credit method. The actuarial gains or losses are 
recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

	 Other short term benefits

	 Expense in respect of other short term benefits is recognised 
on the basis of amount paid or payable for the period during 
which services are rendered by the employees.

(j)	 Borrowing costs

	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or 
construction of fixed assets, which necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use 
are capitalised. 

	 Borrowing cost which are not relatable to qualifying asset 
are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred.

(k)	 Earnings per share

	 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit 
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or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by 
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period. 

	 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, 
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of 
all dilutive potential equity shares.

(I)	 Income tax

	 Provision for current income tax is made on the assessable 
income at the tax rate applicable to the relevant assessment 
year. Deferred income taxes are recognized for the future tax 
consequences attributable to timing differences between 
the financial statement determination of income and their 
recognition for tax purposes. The effect on deferred tax assets 
and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in income 
using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. 

	 Deferred tax assets are recognized and carried forward only to 
the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available against which such 
deferred tax assets can be realized. However, deferred tax 
arising from brought forward losses and depreciation are 
recognized only when there is virtual certainty supported by 
convincing evidence that such assets will be realized. 

	 Deferred tax asset or liability arising during tax holiday period 
is not recognized to the extent it reverses out within the tax 
holiday period.

	 Minimum Alternate tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset 
only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence 
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the 
specified period. In the year in which MAT credit becomes 
eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the 
recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is 
created by way of a credit to the profit and loss account and 
shown as MAT credit entitlement. The Company reviews the 
same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying 
amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent it is not 
reasonably certain that the Company will pay normal income 
tax during the specified period.

(m)	 Contingent liabilities and provisions

	 The Company makes a provision when there is a present 
obligation as a result of a past event where the outflow of 
economic resources is probable and a reliable estimate of the 
amount of the obligation can be made.

	 A disclosure is made for a contingent liability when there is a:

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2012

	 a)	 possible obligation, the existence of which will be 
confirmed by the occurrence/non-occurrence of one or 
more uncertain events, not fully with in the control of 
the Company;

	 b)	 present obligation, where it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation;

	 c)	 present obligation, where a reliable estimate cannot be 
made.

(n)	 Impairment of assets

	 The Company on an annual basis makes an assessment of any 
indicator that may lead to impairment of assets. If any such 
indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable 
amount of the assets.  If such recoverable amount is less than 
the carrying amount, then the carrying amount is reduced to 
its recoverable amount by treating the difference between 
them as impairment loss and is charged to the profit and loss 
account. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that 
if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the 
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at 
the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated 
historical cost.

(o)	 Share-based payment

	 The Company operates an equity-settled share-based plan for 
its employees. Where persons are rewarded using share-based 
payments, the fair values of services rendered by employees 
are determined indirectly by reference to the fair value of 
the equity instruments granted. This fair value is appraised 
using the Black Scholes model at the respective measurement 
date. In the case of employees, the fair value is measured at 
the grant date. The fair value excludes the impact of non-
market vesting conditions. All share-based remuneration is 
recognized as an expense in statement of profit and loss with 
a corresponding credit to ‘share option reserve’.

	 If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the 
expense is allocated over the vesting period, based on the best 
available estimate of the number of share options expected 
to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included in 
assumptions about the number of options that are expected 
to become exercisable. Estimates are subsequently revised, 
if there is any indication that the number of share options 
expected to vest differs from previous estimates and any 
impact of the change is recorded in the year in which change 
occurs. 

	 Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received up to 
the nominal value of the shares issued are allocated to share 
capital with any excess being recorded as securities premium 
reserve.
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3. 	 Share capital 
(` In lacs)

  March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Number  Amount Number Amount

Authorised share capital
-Equity shares  of  ` 10 each  30,000,000  3,000.00  30,000,000  3,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up  
capital

-Equity shares  of  ` 10 each 26,118,414  2,611.84 26,118,414  2,611.84 
Total 26,118,414  2,611.84 26,118,414 2,611.84

a)	 There is no movement in the equity share capital during the current and previous year.

b)	 Terms/rights attached to equity shares

	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having the par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one 
vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees.

	 During the year ended March 31, 2012 the amount of per share dividend recognised as distributions to equity shareholders was nil 
(previous year ` 1 per share).

	 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, 
after payment of all liabilities. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c)	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares of the Company

 Number  % shareholding  Number  % shareholding 
Equity shares of ` 10 each
India Agri Business Fund Limited  3,835,015  14.68  3,835,015  14.68 
Ashwani Arora  3,526,312  13.50  3,526,312  13.50 
Surinder Arora  3,374,912  12.92  3,374,912  12.92 
Gurucharan Dass Arora  2,128,692  8.15  2,128,692  8.15 
Ashok Kumar Arora  2,107,640  8.07  2,107,640  8.07 
Vijay Kumar Arora  1,921,124  7.36  1,921,124  7.36 

d)	 Details of Equity shares issued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus 
issues and brought back during the last 5 years are as follow:

Year ended Face value Bonus issue  
(Number of Shares) 

March 31, 2007  10.00  7,234,550 

e)	 Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares / disinvestments

	 The Company had reserved issuance of 6,48,329 ( Previous year Nil) Equity shares of ` 10 each  for offering to eligible employees of 
the Company and its subsidiaries under Employees Stock Option Plan (ESOP). During the year, the Company had issued and allotted 
Nil (Previous year Nil) equity shares to eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries under ESOP. The option would vest 
over a maximum period of 4 years or such other period as may be decided by the Employees Stock Compensation Committee from 
the date of grant based on specific criteria.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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4.	 Reserves and surplus
(` In lacs)

  March 31, 2012   March 31, 2011 
Capital reserve  (A)  108.61  108.61 
Securities premium reserve  (B)  5,499.52  5,499.52 
General reserve  (C) 

Balance at the beginning of the year  876.20  714.40 
Add : Additions made during the year  -    161.80 
Balance at the end of the year  876.20  876.20 

Share options outstanding amount  (D) 
Balance at the beginning of the year  -    -   
Add : Additions made during the year  71.08  -   
Balance at the end of the year  71.08  -   

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss  (E) 
Balance at the beginning of the year  12,068.55  10,899.41 

Add : Transferred from statement of profit and loss  444.29  1,618.07 
Less : Final / interim dividend proposed / paid  -    (261.18)
Less : Tax on dividends distributed during the year  -    (25.95)
Less : Transfer to general reserve  -    (161.80)

Balance at the end of the year  12,512.84  12,068.55 
Total reserves and surplus (A+B+C+D+E)  19,068.25  18,552.88 

5.	 Long term borrowings
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
 Non current  current  Non current  current 

Secured
Term loans

From banks
-Term loans  6,398.31  3,625.43  6,784.74  3,462.09 
-Vehicle loans  66.60  39.51  92.42  57.76 

 6,464.91  3,664.94  6,877.16  3,519.85 

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2012
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a)	 Rupee term loan comprises of the following :
(` In lacs)

Name of the bank Amount of 
Sanction

Year of 
Sanction

No of 
installments

Amount of 
installments

As at March 
31, 2012

As at March 
31, 2011

Oriental Bank of Commerce  1,050 2010-11 12 equal 
quarterly

 88  437.50  787.50 

Oriental Bank of Commerce  1,200 2010-11 5 equal yearly  240  394.00  745.00 
Oriental Bank of Commerce  500 2008-09 20 equal 

quarterly
 25  184.58  284.58 

Oriental Bank of Commerce  500 2009-10 20 equal 
quarterly

 25  239.30  314.30 

Oriental Bank of Commerce  675 2008-09 12 equal 
quarterly

 56  112.50  281.25 

Oriental Bank of Commerce  500 2011-12 12 equal 
quarterly

 42  374.73  309.56 

Oriental Bank of Commerce  1,710 2011-12 12 equal 
quarterly

 143  1,425.00  -   

Corporation Bank  270 2010-11 12 equal 
quarterly

 23  45.00  135.00 

Corporation Bank  500 2005-06 20 equal 
quarterly

 25  -    50.00 

Corporation Bank  500 2007-08 20 equal 
quarterly

 25  40.00  80.00 

State bank of Hyderabad  1,550 2010-11 10 equal 
quarterly

 155  310.00  1,085.00 

Allahabad Bank  3,750 2010-11 24 equal 
quarterly

 156  2,722.00  2,725.00 

Allahabad Bank  2,700 2011-12 32 equal 
quarterly

 156  2,526.00  1,460.00 

Allahabad Bank  250 2011-12 12 equal 
quarterly

 23  21.90  -   

HDFC Bank  900 2010-11 equal monthly 
installments

 26  179.04  444.11 

ICICI Bank  1,000 2010-11 12 equal 
quarterly

 83  666.66  1,000.00 

Punjab National Bank  500 2008-09 20 equal 
quarterly

 25  198.69  298.69 

Punjab National Bank  500 2008-09 20 equal 
quarterly

 25  146.84  246.84 

 10,023.74  10,246.83 

The interest on above term loans from banks are linked to the respective banks base rates which are floating in nature. As of 31 March 2012 
the interest rates ranges from 11.50% to 15.50% per annum.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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b)	 Vehicle loan comprises of the following :
(` In lacs)

Name of the bank Amount of 
Sanction

Year of 
Sanction

No of 
installments

Amount of 
installments

As at March 
31, 2012

As at March 
31, 2011

HDFC Bank 6.15 2008-09 48 0.2  2.23  4.26 
HDFC Bank 10 2009-2010 48 0.32  5.06  8.26 
HDFC Bank 17 2009-2010 48 0.54  8.60  14.04 
HDFC Bank 9.65 2008-09 48 0.25  0.73  3.50 
HDFC Bank 11.75 2008-09 48 0.3  0.90  4.26 
HDFC Bank 11.75 2008-09 48 0.3  0.90  4.27 
HDFC Bank 11.75 2008-09 48 0.3  0.90  4.26 
HDFC Bank 11.75 2008-09 48 0.3  0.90  4.26 
HDFC Bank 11.75 2008-09 48 0.3  0.90  4.27 
HDFC Bank 7.5 2010-11 72 0.19  5.25  6.96 
HDFC Bank 7.5 2010-11 72 0.19  5.25  6.96 
HDFC Bank 7 2011-12 72 0.23  6.67  -   
HDFC Bank 8 2011-12 36 0.26  6.19  -   
ICICI Bank 17.83 2010-11 60 0.38  13.59  16.60 
ICICI Bank 60 2010-11 60 1.27  48.04  57.84 
ICICI Bank 6.45 2006-07 58 0.14  -    0.40 
Tata Capital 31.47 2008-09 36 1.02  -    3.02 
ICICI Bank 39 2006-07 60 0.82  -    7.02 

 106.11  150.18 

The interest on above term loans from banks are linked to the respective banks base rates which are floating in nature. As of 31 March 2012 
the interest rates ranges from 8.50% to 12.00% per annum.

c)	 Details of security for each type of borrowings:-

	 (I)	 Rupee term loan from all banks amounting to ` 6,398.31 lacs are secured against first pari passu charge on the existing project 
assets, excluding assets charged specifically to the term lenders and Second Pari Passu on current assets of the Company. 

	 (II) 	 Rupee term loan from Allahabad Bank amounting to ` 2,722 lacs is secured against first exclusive charge over the entire fixed 
assets created under the Varpal, Amritsar project. Second charge on current assets on reciprocal basis with ceding of second 
charge on the fixed assets in favour of working capital loan bankers.

	 (III) 	 Rupee term loan from Allahabad Bank amounting to ` 2,526 lacs is secured against first exclusive charge over the entire fixed 
assets of the Silos project located at Amritsar. Second pari -passu charge over fixed assets of Bahalgarh unit along with equitable 
mortgage over land and building on pari passu basis to secure entire credit facilities sanctioned by consortium.

	 (IV)	 Vehicle loans from  all banks are secured against hypothecation of respective motor vehicle financed.

6.	 Deferred taxes
(` In lacs)

  March 31, 2012   March 31, 2011 
a) Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of

Timing difference on tangible assets depreciation  788.80  816.20 
Keyman Insurance Policy  74.26  68.00 

 863.06  884.20 
b) Deferred tax assets arising on account of

Provision for employee benefits  (12.31)  (20.85)
Provision for employees stock option scheme  (23.06)  -   
Provision for doubtful debts and advances  (52.83)  -   
Permanent diminution in value of investment  (18.22)  -   

 (106.42)  (20.85)
Net deferred tax liability  756.64  863.35 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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7.	 Other long term liabilities
(` In lacs)

  March 31, 2012   March 31, 2011 
Security deposits from distributors  8.63  8.83 

 8.63  8.83 

8.	 Provisions
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
 Long term  Short term  Long term  Short term 

Proposed dividend to equity 
shareholders (Also refer note (a) below)

 -    -    -    261.18 

Dividend tax  -    -    -    25.95 
Provisions for employee benefits (Also 
refer note (b) below)

 70.07  14.09  59.95  5.62 

Provision for taxation (net of advance 
tax)

 130.14  -    502.52  -   

Others  -    99.75  -    -   
 200.21  113.84  562.47  292.75 

a) Details with respect to proposed 
dividend
Dividends proposed to

Equity shareholders  Nil  261.18 
Proposed dividend per share

Equity shareholders  Nil ` 1

 b)	   Employee benefits

“The Company has taken a group gratuity for its employees with the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).  Under this policy the eligible 
employees are entitled to receive gratuity payments upon their resignation or death in lumpsum after deduction of necessary taxes upto 
a maximum limit of ` 1,000,000.  

The following table set out the status of the gratuity plan as required under Accounting Standard (AS) - 15 - Employee benefits and the 
reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation.”

(` In lacs)
  March 31, 2012   March 31, 2011 

Change in projected benefit obligation
Projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year  123.92  71.01 
Service cost  25.14  18.66 
Interest cost  10.84  5.84 
Actuarial (gain) / loss  (1.49)  39.05 
Benefits paid  (5.62)  (10.64)
Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year  152.79  123.92 
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year  84.78  79.90 
Expected return on plan assets  8.65  7.06 
Employer contributions  18.76  8.46 
Benefits paid  (5.62)  (10.64)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  106.57  84.78 
Reconciliation of present value of obligation on the fair value of plan assets
Present value of projected benefit obligation at the end of the year  152.79  123.92 
Funded status of the plan assets  106.57  84.78 
Liability recognised in the balance sheet  46.22  39.14 
Components of net gratuity costs are
Service cost  25.14 18.66
Interest cost  10.84 5.84
Expected returns on plan assets  (8.65)  (7.06)
Recognized net actuarial (gain)/ loss  (1.49) 16.58
Net gratuity costs 25.84 34.02
Assumptions used
Discount rate 8.75% 8.25%
Long-term rate of compensation increase 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of return on plan assets 9.15% 8.57%
Average remaining life  23.70  23.70 

The Company assesses these assumptions with the projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes

(i)	 The gratuity expenses have been recognized under note 25
(ii)	 Provident fund contribution made by the company during the year is ` 40.82 lacs (Previous year ` 33.28 lacs).

9.	 Short-term borrowing
(` In lacs)

  March 31, 2012   March 31, 2011 
Secured
Rupee working capital loans

From banks  55,959.39  22,369.15 
Foreign currency working capital loans

From banks  13,112.83  32,202.34 
Unsecured
Loans repayable on demand

From banks  34.97  7,539.77 
 69,107.19  62,111.26 

Cash credits/ working capital demand loans are secured by hypothecation of  stocks and book debts of the Company.

The cash credits/working capital demand loans is repayable on demand and the interest on above term loans from banks are linked to the 
respective banks base rates which are floating in nature. The interest rate ranges from 11.50 % to 15.50 % on rupee working capital loan 
and 3.00% to 6.50% on foreign currency working capital loans.

10.	 Trade payables
(` In lacs)

  March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Dues to micro and small enterprises  292.72  220.38 
Other sundry creditors**  4,932.03  4,150.25 
Acceptances  12.98  1,020.44 
Due to subsidiary company  -    11.65 
Due to partnership firm in which Company is a partner  2,512.10  1,197.93 

 7,749.83  6,600.65 
** Creditors include a sum of ` NIL (previous year ` 2,638.05 lacs) for which the 
Company has given guarantee to banks.

a) Due to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) 
Act, 2006
Principal amount remaining unpaid  292.72  220.38 
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end  -    -   

The management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition 
of micro and small enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006. Accordingly, the 
disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2012 has been made in the financial statements based on 
information received and available with the Company. Further in the view of the management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be 
payable in accordance with the provisions of the MSMED Act, 2006 is not expected to be material.

11.	 Other current liabilities
(` In lacs)

  March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Current maturity of long term debts (refer to note 5)  3,664.94  3,519.85 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  100.39  81.83 
Unclaimed dividend *  11.18  9.38 
Forward payable (net)  -    10.42 
Advances from customers  200.00  501.86 
Other liabilities  832.98  1,418.77 

4,809.49  5,542.11 
* Not due for deposit to Investor education and protection fund.
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12.	 Tangible assets
(` In lacs)

a) Gross block Land 
Freehold 

Buildings Plant and 
equipment 

Furniture   
and 

fixtures 

Office 
equipment 

Vehicles Total 

Balance as at April 01, 2010  2,766.68  2,492.29  10,765.68  113.69  405.89  824.88  17,369.11 
Additions during the year  20.44  239.16  3,497.18  25.66  130.03  230.90  4,143.37 
Disposals during the year  -    (14.59)  (241.96)  -    -    (47.08)  (303.63)
- Borrowing costs *  -    -    53.75  -    -    -    53.75 
Balance as at March 31, 2011  2,787.12  2,716.86  14,074.65  139.35  535.92  1,008.70  21,262.60 
Additions during the year  371.50  2,795.12  3,214.78  62.27  120.40  135.37  6,699.44 
Disposals during the year  -    -    (70.51)  (0.94)  (1.39)  (44.33)  (117.17)
 - Borrowing costs  -    17.91  67.70  -    -    -    85.61 
Balance as at March 31, 2012  3,158.62  5,529.89  17,286.62  200.68  654.93  1,099.74  27,930.48 

b) Accumulated depreciation and 
amortisation
Balance as at April 01, 2010  -    802.26  5,166.81  68.33  251.21  519.09  6,807.70 
Depreciation charge for the year  -    121.93  1,325.69  10.86  62.15  103.63  1,624.26 
Reversal on disposal of assets  -    (1.24)  (164.56)  -    -    (22.00)  (187.80)
Balance as at March 31, 2011  -    922.95  6,327.94  79.19  313.36  600.72  8,244.16 
Depreciation charge for the year  -    265.51  1,598.09  19.43  80.64  143.12  2,106.79 
Reversal on disposal of assets  -    -    (53.10)  (0.21)  (0.44)  (34.63)  (88.38)
Balance as at March 31, 2012  -    1,188.46  7,872.93  98.41  393.56  709.21  10,262.57 

(a-b) Net block
Balance as at March 31, 2012  3,158.62  4,341.43  9,413.69  102.27  261.37  390.53  17,667.91 
Balance as at March 31, 2011  2,787.12  1,793.91  7,746.71  60.16  222.56  407.98  13,018.44 
Assets acquired under lease 
* Interest captilised to capital work in progress  Nil (previous year ` 39.18 lacs)

13.	 Intangible assets
(` In lacs)

a) Gross block  Goodwill  Brand Equity  Total 

Balance as at April 01, 2010  12.11  300.00  312.11 
Balance as at March 31, 2011  12.11  300.00  312.11 
Balance as at March 31, 2012  12.11  300.00  312.11 

b) Accumulated depreciation and amortisation
Balance as at April 01, 2010  2.43  150.00  152.43 
Depreciation charge for the year  7.49  15.00  22.49 
Balance as at March 31, 2011  9.92  165.00  174.92 
Depreciation charge for the year  0.24  15.00  15.24 
Balance as at March 31, 2012  10.17  180.00  190.17 

(a-b) Net block
Balance as at March 31, 2012  1.94  120.00  121.94 
Balance as at March 31, 2011  2.19  135.00  137.19 
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14.	 Non-current investments 
	 (Valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

(` In lacs)

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
 Trade  Others  Trade  Others 

Investments in equity instruments 
(unquoted)

(i)  Subsidiary companies
-L T International Limited
1,799,581 (previous year 1,799,581) 
fully paid up equity shares of ` 10 each

 179.96  -    179.96  -   

-Nature Bio Foods Limited
49,994 (previous year 49,994)  fully 
paid up equity shares of ` 10 each

 5.00  -    5.00  -   

-Sona Global Limited- Dubai
65,200 (previous year 10,000) fully 
paid  up equity shares of AED 100 each

 907.73  -    119.48  -   

-Daawat Foods Limited
13,249,944 (previous year 13,249,944) 
fully paid up equity shares  of ` 10 each

 1,324.99  -    1,324.99  -   

250,050 (previous year 250,050) non 
voting equity shares of ` 10 each fully 
paid up

 25.01  -    25.01  -   

-SDC Foods India Limited (formally 
known as Staple Distribution 
Company Limited) 800,000 (previous 
year 800,000 ) fully paid up equity 
shares of ` 10 each

 80.00  -    80.00  -   

Less: permanent diminution in value 
of investment

 (80.00)  -    -    -   

 -    -    80.00  -   
-LT Overseas North America, Inc 
100,000 (previous year 100,000) shares 
fully paid up

 2,822.31  -    2,822.31  -   

-Raghuvesh Foods & Infrastructure 
Limited
500,000 (previous year Nil) equity 
shares fully paid up of ` 10 each

 5.00  -    5.00  -   

(ii) Investment in partnership firm *
M/s Raghunath Agro Industries  153.33  -    146.31  -   
(Refer note below)

(iii) Investment in associate
-L T Infotech Private Limited
42,500 (previous year 42,500) equity 
shares of ` 10 each

 4.25  -    4.25  -   

Less: Permanent diminution in value 
of investment

 (4.25)  -    -    -   

 -    -    4.25  -   
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(` In lacs)
March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011

 Trade  Others  Trade  Others 
(iv) Keyman insurance policies  228.88  -    209.61  -   

Other investments- Quoted
(a) Fully paid-up equity shares (quoted)

2,300 (previous year 2,300) equity 
shares - Andhra bank of ` 10 each fully 
paid up

 -    0.23  -    0.23 

(b) Investment in mutual funds (quoted)
50,000 (previous year 50,000) units of 
Principal PNB Long Term Equity Fund

 -    5.00  -    5.00 

48,875.855 (previous year 48,875.855) 
units of Templeton India Equity 
Income Growth Fund

 -    5.00  -    5.00 

12,999.619 (previous year 12,999.619) 
units of HDFC MIP Long Term Dividend 
Fund

 -    1.50  -    1.50 

2,023.636 (previous year 2,023.636) 
units of Sundram BNP Paribas Select 
Midcap Dividend Plan

 -    0.30  -    0.30 

894.055 (previous year 894.055) units 
of Reliance Vision Fund

 -    0.40  -    0.40 

Other investments- Unquoted
(a) Fully paid-up equity shares (unquoted)

500 (previous year 500) equity shares 
of India International Marketing 
Limited

 -    0.05  -    0.05 

 5,652.21  12.48  4,921.92  12.48 
Aggregate amount of
Quoted investments  -    12.43  -    12.43 
Market value of quoted investments  -    14.38  -    19.33 
Unquoted investments  5,652.21  0.05  4,921.92  0.05 

* Share of Investments in partnership firm

The Company has 4% interest in partnership firm M/s Raghunath Agro Industries, which is engaged in the business of milling and export 
of rice. The financial results of the partnership firm for the year ended March 31, 2012 are as under:

(` In lacs)

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Assets  8,147.08  9,511.41 
Liabilities  6,851.44  8,391.13 
Revenues  7,636.22  11,106.35 
Expenditure  7,528.12  10,926.51 
Outstanding capital  1,295.65  1,120.28 

- During the year the Company earned income of ` 1.65 lacs (previous year ` 8.47 lacs) as share profit from partnership firm and ` 5.38 lacs 
(previous year ` 3.89 lacs) as interest on capital in partnership firm, as the same has been re invested the same has been included in the 
carrying amount of investment.

Name of the partner and share in profit (%)

1 LT Foods Limited 4% 4%
2 Daawat Foods  Limited 96% 96%
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15.	 Loans and advances
(` In lacs)

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
 Long term  Short term  Long term  Short term 

Unsecured, considered good unless 
otherwise stated
Capital advances  -    -    396.87  -   
Security Deposits  268.32  8.23  240.50  36.69 
Loans and advances to related parties  -    1,851.97  -    2,543.19 
Minimum alternative tax credit receivable  -    421.20  -    397.13 
Advance income tax  675.12  -    662.61  -   
Balances with central excise authorities  262.20  -    189.80  -   

 1,205.64  2,281.40  1,489.78  2,977.01 
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or 
value to be received
 - Unsecured, considered good  91.85  5,394.68  9.00  2,212.87 
 - Consider doubtful  -    49.71  -    -   
 - Provision for doubtful advances  -    (49.71)  -    -   

 91.85  5,394.68  9.00  2,212.87 
 1,297.49  7,676.08  1,498.78  5,189.88 

16.	 Inventories (valued at cost or lower of net realisable value)
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Paddy  28,749.32  33,776.68 
Bardana  839.62  740.08 
Packing Material  503.81  476.84 
Finished goods  18,343.14  18,947.68 
Traded goods  1,322.05  281.74 
Stores and spares  229.65  213.92 

 49,987.59  54,436.94 

17.	 Trade receivables
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they 
are due for payment
-Unsecured considered good  552.06  401.29 
-Doubtful  113.10 

 665.16  401.29 
Less : Provision for bad and doubtful debts  (113.10)  -   

 (a)  552.06  401.29 
Other debts
-Unsecured considered good  (b)  25,054.77  18,190.25 

 (a+b)  25,606.83  18,591.54 
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18.	 Cash and bank balances
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
 Non-current  Current  Non-current  Current 

Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Cash in hand

In Indian currency  -    39.23  -    25.09 
In foreign currencies  -    7.24  -    0.85 

(b) Balances with banks 
In current accounts  -    1,074.52  -    609.55 
In deposit account (with maturity 
upto 3 months)

 -    1,341.39  -    822.27 

(c) Other bank balances
Unpaid dividend account  -    11.17  -    9.38 

(d) Bank deposits with maturity of more 
than 12 months

 55.23  -    43.92  -   

 55.23  2,473.55  43.92  1,467.14 
Less : Amounts disclosed under non-
current assets (Refer note 19)

 (55.23)  -    (43.92)

 -    2,473.55  -    1,467.14 

19.	 Other current assets
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
 Non-current  Current  Non-current  Current 

Interest accrued but not due on fixed 
deposits

 -    1.54  -    1.20 

Deferred premium on forward contacts  -    -    -    0.67 
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 
12 months (Refer note 18)

 55.23  -    43.92  -   

 55.23  1.54  43.92  1.87 

20.	 Revenue from operation
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Sale of products
Export

Rice  45,257.92  34,363.29 
Other items  2,489.87  7,136.27 

Domestic
Rice  47,953.54  37,905.66 
Other items  2,718.60  2,887.97 

 98,419.93  82,293.19 
Details of products sold
-Finished goods sold

Rice  66,713.11  58,962.61 
Others  2,287.63  2,046.65 

-Traded goods sold
Rice  26,498.35  13,306.34 
Maize  1,803.13  -   
Soyabean  419.50  7,159.97 
Others  698.21  817.66 

 98,419.93  82,293.23 
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21.	 Other income
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Dividend from non trade investments  0.10  0.15 
Profit from sale of fixed assets (net)  1.63  26.64 
Share of profit in partnership firm  1.65  8.47 
Interest from partnership firm  5.38  3.89 
Interest on bank fixed deposits  120.21  57.08 
Dividend from trade investments *  -    101.25 
Income from business support services  441.77  767.90 
Export incentive  38.97  234.50 
Miscellaneous  564.46  199.83 
Service charges received  391.55  -   

 1,565.72  1,399.71 

* During the year ended March 31, 2011 the Company recognised ` 101.25 lacs as dividend income from subsidiary company as per the 
requirements of Old schedule VI. As the right to receive the dividend accrues when the dividend is approved by the shareholders at the 
Annual general meeting, the same has not been recognised during the year ended March 31, 2012.

22.	 Material consumed
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Opening stock

Paddy  33,776.68  23,084.97 
Bardana  740.08  495.31 
Packing material  476.84  351.82 

 34,993.60  23,932.10 
Add: purchases

Paddy  33,111.58  45,420.45 
Bardana  491.12  771.35 
Packing material  3,276.34  3,293.70 
Broken rice/unpolished rice  10,286.61  9,622.18 

 47,165.65  59,107.68 
Less: closing stock

Paddy  28,749.32  33,776.68 
Bardana  839.62  740.08 
Packing material  503.81  476.84 

 30,092.75  34,993.60 
 52,066.50  48,046.18 

23.	 Purchases of traded goods
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Rice  19,599.95  10,434.62 
Soyabean  227.96  7,045.80 
Maize  2,017.40  -   
Others  206.43  0.54 

 22,051.74 17,480.96 

24.	 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods

(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Opening stock of finished goods

Manufactured goods  18,947.68  20,492.36 
Traded goods  281.74  -   

Closing stock of finished goods
Manufactured goods  18,343.14  18,947.68 
Traded goods  1,322.05  281.74 

 (435.77)  1,262.94 
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25.	 Employee benefits expenses
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Salaries, wages and bonus (Refer note b)  1,961.78  1,288.31 
Contribution to provident and other fund  86.35  84.08 
Staff welfare expenses  105.36  71.77 
Director’s remuneration  178.53  158.50 

 2,332.02  1,602.66 

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2012

a)	 Provident fund

	 Contribution made by the Company during the year is ` 40.82 
lacs (previous year ` 33.28 lacs).

b)	 Share-based payment

	 The Company maintains an equity settled share-based 
payment scheme LT foods employee stock option plan-2010, 
hereinafter referred to as ‘the Plan’) adopted and approved by 
share-holders on September 30, 2010. 

	 Under the Plan the Board of Directors of the Company has the 
powers to determine, from time to time, the persons eligible 
for grant of share options; when and how each option shall 
be granted; what type or combination of types of option shall 
be granted; the provisions of each option granted, including 
the time or times when a person shall be permitted to receive 
shares pursuant to an option grant. The Group has no legal or 
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options. In 
accordance with the Plan, upon vesting, the stock options will 
be settled by issuance of new shares on payment of exercise 
price.

	 The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period 
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options 
granted. The total expense recognized in the income 
statement for the year ended March 31, 2012 is ` 71.08 lacs 
(March 31, 2011: Nil).

	 The fair values of options granted were determined using 
Black Scholes option pricing model that takes into account 
factors specific to the share incentive plans along with other 
external inputs.

	 The following principal assumptions were used in the 
valuation: Expected volatility was determined by assuming 
that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of 
the options is indicative of future trends, which may also not 
necessarily be the actual outcome. The expected option life, 
average expected period to exercise, is assumed to be equal 
to the contractual maturity of the option. Dividend yield is 
taken as nil as the Group has not paid any dividend.  The risk-
free rate is the rate associated with a risk-free security with the 
same maturity as the option. At each balance sheet date, the 
Company reviews its estimates of the number of options that 
are expected to vest. The Company recognizes the impact 
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income 
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to ‘retained 
earnings’ in equity.

	 The inputs to the Black Scholes model for options that have 
been granted during the reporting periods are summarised as 
follows:

Grant date April 01, 2011
Fair value of  option using the Black 
Scholes model(in `)

21.05

Fair value of shares at grant date (INR) 49.5
Exercise price (in `) 38
Expected volatility 67%
Option life (in years) 4
Dividend yield 2.02%
Risk-free interest rate 5.80%

	 The total outstanding and exercisable share options and 
weighted average exercise prices for the various categories of 
option holders during the reporting periods are as follows: 

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Number of 

options
Weighted 

average 
exercise price

Weighted 
average 

remaining 
contractual 

life

Number of 
options

Weighted 
average 

exercise price

Weighted 
average 

remaining 
contractual 

life
(in `) (in `)

Balance at beginning of the year  -   - - - - -
Granted during the year  648,329 38 - - - -
Forfeited during the year  -   - - - - -
Exercised during the year  -   - - - - -
Expired during the year  -   - - - - -
Balance at end of the year  648,329 38 - - - -
Exercisable at end of the year  162,082 38 -  -  -  - 
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26.	 Finance cost
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Interest on working capital loans  5,682.17  2,110.90 
Interest on term loans  1,924.35  1,736.20 

 7,606.52  3,847.10 
Less: Interest capitalised  (85.61)  (92.93)

 7,520.91  3,754.17 
Bank charges  205.44  142.59 

 7,726.35  3,896.76 

27.	 Other expenses
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Warehouse rent  101.99  36.95 
Wages and other manufacturing expenses  339.26  317.24 
Factory insurance  47.33  20.05 
Power and fuel  1,034.10  948.27 
Security services  109.32  89.74 
Research and development  1.46  1.20 
Packing expenses  184.81  207.87 
Repairs and maintenance
- Machinery  85.00  79.68 
- Building  93.61  60.37 
- Others  28.86  29.53 
Stores and spares consumed  434.64  387.12 
Advertisement  853.75  482.39 
Insurance  46.29  28.66 
Legal and professional charges  482.54  458.96 
Rates and taxes  58.55  50.31 
Donation and charity  31.59  26.07 
Directors’ sitting fees  3.40  3.30 
Auditors’ remuneration *  19.90  21.90 
Fines and penalties  2.55  2.30 
Rent  351.02  339.51 
Vehicle running and maintenance  45.28  41.25 
Other administrative expenses  496.81  325.75 
Travelling and conveyance  534.35  334.28 
Rebate and discounts  276.75  119.49 
Commission to selling agents  134.29  94.73 
Clearing, forwarding and freight charges  3,754.75  1,965.54 
Market development expenses  32.39  221.64 
Business promotion expenses  157.52  102.88 
Freight outward  465.38  245.14 
Other selling expenses  818.87  123.86 
Amounts written off  19.60  0.17 
Provision for doubtful recoveries  162.82  -   
Impairment of investment  84.25  -   
Loss on exchange fluctuation (net)  -    135.26 
Premium on forward contract  0.68  56.75 

 11,293.71  7,358.16 
* Auditors’ remuneration 
Statutory audit (including fees for limited reviews) #  16.25  18.50 
Tax audit  -  0.75 
Other matters  1.15  0.25 
Out of pocket expenses  0.64  0.39 
Service tax  1.86  2.01 

 19.90  21.90 
# Includes fee paid to previous auditor ` Nil (previous year ` 5.25 lacs)
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28.	 Prior period items
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Expenditure
Income tax prior years  -   39.56
Minimum alternative tax  -   21.68
Miscellaneous expenditure written off  -   178.06
Electricity charges  19.07  -   
Others  7.95  12.65 

 27.02  251.95 
Income
Export incentive  -    166.03 
Others  7.53  29.67 

 7.53  195.70 
 19.49 56.25

29.	 Exceptional items
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation  2,412.77  -   

 2,412.77  -   

30.	 Contingent liabilities
(` In lacs)

Nature of contingency March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
- Income-tax demands * 3,161.59 256.33
- Haryana rural development fund demand of market committee, Sonepat 30.78 102.03
- Food Corporation India demand for differential price /freight /taxes 339.00 339.00
- Liability against duty saved under EPCG licenses Issued 3,815.92 1,092.29
- Guarantee given by Company to bank on behalf of subsidiary/firm in which the 
Company is a partner

57,797.82 40,607.50

- Guarantee given by Company on the behalf of subsidiary for export obligation under 
EPCG scheme

14.68 14.68

- Guarantee given by Company to other company on behalf of subsidiary 511.57 446.50
- Guarantee given by Company for loan taken by others from banks - 3,000.00
Total 65,671.36 45,858.33

*The demand of ` 135.96 lacs are disputed and the matter is 
subjudice with Commissioner of Income tax Appeals.

These are departmental appeals with Income tax appellate tribunal, 
which has redirected the assessing officer to re-compute the 
deduction under section 80IA and 80HHC in the case for AY 2002-
2003 and order of the Income tax appellate tribunal is awaited in 
the case for AY 2006-2007.

LT Foods Limited on August 19, 2011 received a tax demand 
of ` 2,863.83 lacs pursuant to the proceedings initiated by the 
income tax department post the search and seizure procedures 
on February 10, 2009. The Company has filed appeals against the 
above mentioned orders and no further provisions have been made 
pending conclusion of the appeals. The management believes 
that its position is likely to be upheld and no financial liability will 
devolve on the Company on account of these proceeding.

31.	 Capital commitments

	 Capital commitments remaining to be executed and not 
provided for, net of capital advances - ` 1.96 lacs (previous 

year: ` 20.91 lacs).

32	 Related party disclosures

	 In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 
(AS)-18 on “Related Party Disclosures”, the names of related 
parties where control exist and/or with whom transactions 
have taken place during the year and description of 
relationships, as identified and certified by the management, 
are:

	 (i) Names of related parties and description of relationship

- Subsidiary companies
Daawat Foods Limited
SDC Foods India Limited
Expo Services Private Limited
Nature Bio Foods Limited
LT International Limited
LT Overseas North America, Inc.
Kusha, Inc.
Sona Global Limited
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Nice International  FZE
Raghuvesh Foods & Infrastructure Limited
LT Foods USA LLC.
Raghuvesh Power Projects Limited
- Partnership firm
Raghunath Agro Industries
- Associate enterprises 
LT Infotech Private Limited
Cordia LT Communications Private Limited (Subsidiary of LT 
Infotech Private Limited)

- Key Management Personnel 

Name    Designation
Vijay Kumar Arora Chairman and Managing 

Director
Surinder Kumar Arora Joint Managing Director
Ashwani Kumar Arora Joint Managing Director
Ashok Kumar Arora President-Punjab Operations

Transactions with subsidiary companies
(` In lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Sales
SDC Foods India Limited 6,393.74 5,082.95
Kusha, Inc. 10,581.08 11,957.91
Nice International FZE 5,672.19 1,739.01
Daawat Foods Limited 2,444.34 1,388.54
Nature Bio Foods Limited 50.73 30.25
Purchases
Nice International FZE 138.53 -
Daawat Foods Limited 3,466.04 7,033.88
Nature Bio Foods Limited 137.78 183.51
SDC Foods India Limited 16.79 -
Rent paid 
Daawat Foods Limited 42.24 47.32
Rent received
Daawat Foods Limited 1.20 -
Business Support Charges received
Expo Services Private Limited 441.77 -
Processing Charges received
Nature Bio Foods Limited 186.16 -
Investment (Sona Global Limited) 788.25 -
Interest received
SDC Foods India Limited - 108.81                        
Daawat Foods Limited - 75.51                  
Nature Bio Foods Limited 26.05                  50.38                 
Sona Global Limited 20.25                  18.08                  
LT International Limited 1.09              0.69             
Dividend received
Daawat Foods Limited - 101.25
Repayment of loan
Nice International FZE - 205.87
Balances at the year end
SDC Foods India Limited (net receivable) 3,701.53 1,614.10
Nice International FZE (net receivable) 2,904.80 1,358.22
Kusha, Inc. 569.68 1,627.73
Daawat Foods Limited 2,280.14 1,671.88
Expo Services Private Limited 316.20 134.01
Nature Bio Foods Limited (net receivable) 320.60 291.51
LT International Limited 12.23 6.71
LT Overseas North America Inc. 138.92 138.92
Sona Global Limited 189.01 168.76
Raghuvesh Foods & Infrastructure Limited 0.95 0.54
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(` In lacs)
Particulars March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Guarantees given on behalf
Kusha, Inc. 10,742.87 9,376.50
Daawat Foods Limited  24,103.68  16,222.68
Nature Bio Foods Limited  3,400.00  1,700.00
LT Overseas North America Inc.  11,766.00  5,804.50
SDC Foods India Limited  1,500.00  1,500.00
Nice International FZE  1,616.52  1,270.00
Balance with associate companies
LT Infotech Private limited 66.73 66.73
Cordia LT Communications Private limited 32.69 16.41
Transactions with partnership firm (Raghunath Agro Industries)
Sales 1,060.58 412.64
Purchases 2,087.37 111.02
Interest income 5.38 3.89
Share of profit 1.65 8.47
Balance payable at the year end 2,512.10 1,197.93
Guarantees given on behalf of Partnership Firm 5,195.00 5,195.00
Transactions with key management persons
Remuneration paid
Vijay Kumar Arora 78.00 78.00
Ashwani Kumar Arora 52.49 60.00
Surinder Kumar Arora 60.00 60.00
Perquisites
Surinder Kumar Arora 0.76 8.97
Dividend paid to key management persons 110.10 158.19
Dividend paid to relatives of key management persons 38.06 64.04

33.	 Information pursuant to provisions of paragraph 3 & 4 of Part II of Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956:
(i)	 Raw material consumed

(` In lacs)

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Particulars Value Percentage Value Percentage
Indigenous 38,194.48 100% 34,728.74 100%
Imported - - - -
Total 38,194.48 100% 34,728.74 100%

(ii)	 Packing material
(` In lacs)

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Particulars Value Percentage Value Percentage
Indigenous 3,245.71 99.89% 3,168.68 99.56%
Imported 3.66  0.11%     13.88 0.44%
Total 3,249.37 100% 3,182.56 100%

(iii)	 Bardana
(` In lacs)

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Particulars Value Percentage Value Percentage
Indigenous 391.58 100% 526.58 100%
Imported - - - -
Total 391.58 100% 526.58 100%
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(iv)	 Consumable and Spares
(` In lacs)

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Particulars Value Percentage Value Percentage
Indigenous 420.99 96.86% 345.12 89.15%
Imported 13.65 3.14%  42.00 10.85%
Total 434.64 100% 387.12 100%

(v)	 Value of imports on CIF basis
(` In lacs)

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Capital goods 225.01 1,532.15
Packing materials 7.44 13.88
Stores and spares 14.08 42.00

246.53 1,588.03

(vi)	 Expenditure in foreign currency
(` In lacs)

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Legal Fees 17.60 2.86
Interest and other charges to bank 1,277.34 1,081.56
Steamer freight 1,329.13 -
Sales Promotion 217.59 -
Commission on export sales 66.15 -
Others 200.34 119.70

3,108.15 1,204.12

(vii)	 Earnings in foreign currency
(` In lacs)

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
FOB value of exports
Rice 43,327.55 33,517.06
Soyabean 409.82 7,039.99
Rapeseed 223.51 -
Maize 1,803.13 -
Chips and namkeen 3.70 -
Packing materials 11.99 -

45,779.70 40,557.05

34.	 Earnings per share

Particulars March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders before prior period items and Exceptional 
Loss (` lacs)

2,670.95   1,866.31

Prior period items and Exceptional Loss (` lacs) 2,226.66 248.25
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders after prior period items and Exceptional 
Loss (` lacs)

444.29 1,618.06

Numbers of weighted average equity share outstanding at the year-end for Basic & 
Diluted (` in lacs)

261.18 261.18

Nominal value of equity share   (`) 10 10
Earnings Per Share after prior period items and Exceptional Loss–Basic (`) 1.70 6.20
Diluted (`)* 1.70 6.20

* The amount has been rounded off to two decimal places.

35.	 In the opinion of the board of directors, the current assets, loans and advances have a value on realization in the ordinary course of 
business at least equal to the amounts at which they are stated and provision for all known liabilities have been made in the Financial 
Statements.

2-LT Foods Standalone_130812.indd   73 8/13/2012   8:34:13 PM



THEME PAGE CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE CEO’S LETTER

{ 74 }  Annual Report 2011-12

36.	 The Company is a lessee under an operating lease. Rental expense for operating lease for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 
was ` 453.01 lacs and ` 376.46 lacs respectively. The Company has not executed any non-cancelable operating leases.

37.	 The year end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise is as follows:

(In lacs)

As at   
March 31, 2012

As at March 31, 
2011

As at 
March 31, 2012

As at  
March 31, 2011

i)  Receivables in Foreign Currency

 - Sundry Debtors 13,145.58 2,882.60 USD 256.80
GBP 0.15

USD 66.42
GBP 0.10

ii) Payables in Foreign Currency

 - Sundry Creditors 12.10 57.79 USD 0.28
EURO 0.0036

USD 0.63
JPY 55.00

38.	 Transfer Pricing

As per the transfer pricing norms introduced in India with effect from April 1, 2001, the Company is required to use certain specified 
methods in computing arm’s length price of international transactions between the associated enterprises and maintain prescribed 
information and documents relating to such transactions.  The appropriate method to be adopted will depend on the nature of 
transactions/ class of transactions, class of associated persons, functions performed and other factors, which have been prescribed.  
The Company is in the process of conducting a transfer pricing study for the current financial period.  However, in the opinion of the 
Management the same would not have a material impact on these financial statements.  Accordingly, these financial statements do 
not include any adjustments for the transfer pricing implications, if any.

39.	 The remuneration paid to Mr. Vijay Kumar Arora (Managing Director), Mr. Ashwani Kumar Arora (Joint Managing Director) and 
Mr. Surinder Kumar Arora (Joint Managing Director) was approved by the shareholders of the Company. However, owing to the 
insufficient profits during the year, not determinable on the date of such approval, the remuneration paid during the year ended 
March 31, 2012 is in excess of the limits specified under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 by ` 119.25lacs. The Company is 
taking necessary steps to seek approval from the shareholders and Central Government for excess remuneration paid.

40.	 In accordance with AS-17 “Segment Reporting”, segment information has been given in the consolidated financial statements of LT 
Foods Limited, and therefore, no separate disclosure on segment information is given in these financial statements.

41.	 Details of Loan and advances in the nature of loan to subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
(` In lacs)

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Closing balances as at the balance sheet date
Sona Global Limited (subsidiary) 189.01 168.76
Nice International FZE (fellow subsidiary) - -
Maximum balances outstanding during the year
Sona Global Limited (subsidiary) 189.01 168.76
Nice International FZE (fellow subsidiary) - 205.87

42.	 Previous year figures

Till the year ended March 31, 2011 the Company was using pre-revised schedule VI to the Companies Act 1956, for preparation and 
presentation of its financial statements. During the year ended March 31, 2012 the revised schedule VI notified under the Companies Act 
1956, has become applicable to the Company. The Company has reclassified previous year figures to confirm to this year’s classification. The 
adoption of revised schedule VI does not impact recognition and measurement principles followed for preparation of financial statements. 
However, its significantly impacts presentation and disclosure made in the financial statements, particularly presentation of balance sheet.

	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

	 Ashwani Kumar Arora	 Surinder Kumar Arora 
	 Joint Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director

	 Monika Chawla Jaggia
	 Company Secretary

Place	:	Gurgaon
Date	 :	May 24, 2012
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Auditors’ Report

To  
the Board of Directors of LT Foods Limited 

1.	 We have audited the attached consolidated balance sheet of 
LT Foods Limited (the Company), its subsidiaries, associates 
and partnership firm (hereinafter collectively referred to as 
‘the Group’), as at March 31, 2012, and also the consolidated 
statement of profit and loss and the consolidated cash 
flow statement for the year ended on the date annexed 
thereto (collectively referred as the ‘consolidated financial 
statements’). These consolidated financial statements are 
the responsibility of the Group’s management and have 
been prepared by the Group’s management on the basis of 
separate financial statements and other financial information 
regarding components. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on 
our audit.

2.	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing 
standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance whether the Consolidated Financial Statements are 
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion.

3.	 We report that:

(a)	 the Consolidated Financial Statements have been 
prepared by the Group’s management in accordance 
with the requirements of Accounting Standard 21 on 
Consolidated Financial Statements and Accounting 
Standard 23 on  ‘Accounting for Investments in Associates 
in Consolidated Financial Statements’ notified pursuant 
to  the  Companies  (Accounting  Standards) Rules, 2006. 

(b)	 We did not audit the financial statements of certain 
subsidiaries, associates and a partnership firm, 
whose financial statements reflect total assets (after 
eliminating intra-group transactions) of ` 43,668.89 lacs 
March 31, 2012; total revenues (after eliminating intra-
group transactions) of ` 59,157.30 lacs and net cash 

flows aggregating to ` 1,637.40 lacs for the year then 
ended. These financial statements and other financial 
information have been audited by other auditors 
whose report(s) has (have) been furnished to us by the 
management, and our opinion is based solely on the 
reports of the other auditors.

4.	 We report that, as detailed in note 36 of the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements, the Company and one of its 
subsidiaries has paid managerial remuneration to its directors 
in excess of the limits provided in Schedule XIII to the Companies 
Act, 1956, amounting to ` 126.32 lacs. Consequently, the loans 
and advances and reserves and surplus as at March 31, 2012 are 
understated and loss for the year then ended is overstated by the 
said amount.

5.	 Based on our audit and on consideration of reports of other 
auditors on the separate financial statements and on the 
other financial information of the subsidiaries and partnership 
firm, and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, subject to our comments in paragraph 
4 above, in our opinion, the attached consolidated financial 
statements give a true and fair view in con-formity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, in case of: 

(a)	 the consolidated balance sheet, of the state of affairs of 
the Group as at March 31, 2012;

(b)	 the consolidated statement of profit and loss, of the loss 
for the year ended on that date; and

(c)	 the consolidated cash flow statement, of the cash flows 
for the year ended on that date.

For Walker, Chandiok & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001076N

per David Jones
Partner
Membership No.: 98113

Place	: Gurgaon
Date	: July 23, 2012
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2012

(` In lacs)

Notes  March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3  2,611.84  2,611.84 
Reserves and surplus 4  22,865.63  22,793.68 

 25,477.47  25,405.52 
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5  12,502.65  10,175.03 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6  428.27  729.10 
Other long term liabilities 7  15.83  8.83 
Long-term provisions 8  237.23  96.63 
Minority interest  1,981.12  2,059.07 

 15,165.10  13,068.66 
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 9  103,050.18  97,041.51 
Trade payables 10  7,243.02  8,423.30 
Other current liabilities 11  8,244.98  7,513.06 
Short-term provisions 8  654.66  942.38 

 119,192.84  113,920.25 
 159,835.41  152,394.43 

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets

Tangible assets 12  26,214.68  20,631.31 
Intangible assets 13  6,835.40  6,350.74 
Capital work-in-progress  533.32  5,321.18 

Non-current investments 14  480.59  328.56 
Long-term loans and advances 15  1,992.64  1,609.02 
Other non-current assets 16  385.70  127.41 

 36,442.33  34,368.22 
Current assets
Inventories 17  82,956.44  81,929.53 
Trade receivables 18  26,736.77  28,083.39 
Cash and bank balances 19  5,423.62  2,669.01 
Short-term loans and advances 15  8,229.04  5,254.05 
Other current assets 16  47.21  90.23 

 123,393.08  118,026.21 
 159,835.41  152,394.43 

Notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements

This is the consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For Walker, Chandiok & Co	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

per David Jones	 Ashwani Kumar Arora		  Surinder Kumar Arora 
Partner	 Joint Managing Director		  Joint Managing Director

			   Monika Chawla Jaggia
			   Company Secretary

Place	:	Gurgaon	 Place	: Gurgaon
Date	 :	July 23, 2012	 Date	 : May 24, 2012
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(` In lacs)

Notes  March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Income
Revenue from operations 20  142,176.44  126,041.58 
Other income 21  1,373.84  519.16 

 143,550.28  126,560.74 
Expenses
Material consumed 22  70,183.53  70,274.67 
Purchases of traded goods 23  39,947.12  21,941.84 
Changes in inventories of finished goods and traded goods 24  (6,882.68)  2,020.41 
Employee benefits 25  4,257.78  3,525.72 
Finance costs 26  10,748.14  5,873.64 
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense  3,395.98  2,595.81 
Other expenses 27  18,321.73  16,888.30 

 139,971.60  123,120.39 

Profit before prior period, exceptional items and tax  3,578.68  3,440.35 
Prior period items 28  18.39  53.85 
Exceptional items
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation  3,562.13  -   
(Loss)/Profit before tax  (1.84)  3,386.50 
Tax expense

Current tax  453.22  707.30 
Tax earlier years  130.16  -   
Minimum alternative tax receivable  (36.87)  (296.05)
Deferred tax-earlier tax  (182.46)  192.00 
Deferred tax  (164.39)  263.73 

(Loss)/Profit after tax  (201.50)  2,519.52 

Earnings per equity share (`)
Basic and diluted *  (0.41)  9.65 
* The amount is rounded off to two decimals

Notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements

Consolidated Profit and Loss
for the year ended March 31, 2012

This is the consolidated Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For Walker, Chandiok & Co	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

per David Jones	 Ashwani Kumar Arora		  Surinder Kumar Arora 
Partner	 Joint Managing Director		  Joint Managing Director

			   Monika Chawla Jaggia
			   Company Secretary

Place	:	Gurgaon	 Place	: Gurgaon
Date	 :	July 23, 2012	 Date	 : May 24, 2012
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Consolidated  Cash flow statement 
for the year ended March 31, 2012

(` In lacs)
 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax and prior period items  16.55  3,440.35 
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation/amortization on continuing operations  3,395.98  2,595.81 
Loss / (profit) on sale of fixed assets  1.77  (27.29)
Employee stock compensation expense  71.08  -   
Provision for employees benefit  32.67  36.21 
Unrealized foreign exchange loss  387.45  -   
Provision for impairment of investment  4.25  -   
Provision for doubtful debts  317.39  32.04 
Provision for advances  49.71  -   
Amount written back  (4.32)
Premium on forward contract  29.11  117.70 
Loss on Investment  (3.47)
Miscellaneous expenditure written off  53.60  26.41 
Interest expense  10,357.63  5,873.64 
Interest income  (137.15)  (61.67)
Prior period items (net)  (18.38)  (53.85)
Dividend income  (0.10)  (0.15)

Operating profit before operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities :

 14,553.77  11,979.20 

(decrease)/ Increase in trade payables  (1,335.12)  7,465.61 
Increase in long term provisions  (474.23)  -   
Increase/(decrease) in short term provisions  174.53  (4,949.94)
Increase in other current liabilities  (358.44)  2,255.82 
Increase/(decrease) in other long term liabilities  7.00  (0.90)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables  4,139.15  (11,568.39)
Increase in inventories  (265.85)  (13,727.72)
(Increase)/Decrease in long term loans and advances  187.72  357.09 
Increase in short term loans and advances  (6,193.51)  (1,832.61)
Decrease in other current assets  (104.93)  212.91 
(Increase)/ Decrease in other non current assets  (11.65)  36.67 

Cash generated from/(used in) operations  10,318.44  (9,772.26)
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)  (836.59)  (1,274.79)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities                                                                              [A]  9,481.85  (11,047.05)

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets including intangible assets, CWIP and capital advances  (3,135.00)  (10,386.21)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  44.58  161.27 
Purchase of non current investments  (155.26)  (21.36)
Investment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)  (61.40)  (5.48)
Interest received  126.81  153.07 
Deposit in unpaid dividend account  (1.79)  (9.38)
Dividends received from subsidiary company  0.10  0.15 
Dividends received from other investments

Net cash used in investing activities                                                                                                                [B]  (3,181.96)  (10,107.94)

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long term borrowings  6,912.51  5,034.79 
Repayment of long term borrowings  (7,439.80)  (5,327.59)
Proceeds from short term borrowings  7,529.23  29,116.15 
Interest paid  (10,355.62)  (5,941.82)
Dividends paid on equity shares  (352.85)  (538.82)

Proceeds from issue of share capital to minority  1.95  0.49 
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities                                                                           [C]  (3,704.58)  22,343.20 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents                                                                                                    [A+B+C]  2,595.31  1,188.21 
Effect of exchange difference on cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currency  151.06  -   
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  2,642.12  1,453.91 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  5,388.49  2,642.12 
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand  94.17  646.78 
With banks on current account  3,947.88  1,111.65 
- on deposit account  1,346.44  883.69 
Total cash and cash equivalents  5,388.49  2,642.12 
Notes 1 to 37 are an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the consolidated Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date

For Walker, Chandiok & Co	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

per David Jones	 Ashwani Kumar Arora	 Surinder Kumar Arora 
Partner	 Joint Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director

			   Monika Chawla Jaggia
			   Company Secretary

Place	:	Gurgaon	 Place	: Gurgaon
Date	 :	July 23, 2012	 Date	 : May 24, 2012
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1.	 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

	 The consolidated financial statements are prepared on accrual 
basis under the historical cost convention, in accordance with 
the generally accepted accounting principles applicable in 
India, the accounting standards referred under section 211 
(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Rules framed there 
under.

2.	 Significant accounting policies

	 a) Principles of consolidation

	 The financial statements of LT Foods Limited (“Parent  
Company” or “the Company”), together with its subsidiaries, 
associate and partnership firm (hereinafter collectively 
referred to as the “Group”) are consolidated to form 
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial 
statements include the financial statements of the Parent 
Company, its subsidiaries, partnership firmand share of profits 
or losses in associate.

	 The consolidated financial statements have been combined 
on a line-by-line basis by adding the book values of like items 
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating 
intra-group balances/transactions and unrealized profits in 
full. The amounts shown in respect of reserves comprise the 
amount of the relevant reserves as per the balance sheet of 
the Parent Company and its share in the post-acquisition 
increase/ decrease in the reserves of the consolidated entities.

	 An investment in an associate has been accounted for by 
the equity method of consolidation from the date on which 
it falls within the definition of associate in accordance with 
Accounting Standard - 23 - “Accounting for Investments in 
Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements”.

	 The excess/deficit of cost to the Parent Company of its 
investment over its portion of net worth in the consolidated 
entities at the respective dates on which the investment in such 
entities was made is recognised in the financial statements as 
goodwill/capital reserve. The Parent Company’s portion of 
net worth in such entities is determinedon the basis of book 
values of assets and liabilities as per the financial statements 
of the entities as on the date ofinvestment and if not available, 
the financial statements for the immediately preceding period 
adjusted for theeffects of significant changes.

	 The consolidated financial statements are presented, to the 
extent possible, in the same format as that adopted by the 
Parent Company for its separate financial statements.

	 b) Use of estimates 

	 The preparation of Group’s financial statements in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the 
disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of financial 
statements and the reported amount of revenues and 
expenses during the period reported. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting 

Consolidated  Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2012

estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future 
periods.

	 c) Revenue recognition

	 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it can be reliably 
measured and is probable that the economic benefits will 
flow to the Group.

	 Sale of goods:

	 Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to 
the customer and is stated net of sales returns and indirect 
taxes.

	 Rental income:

	 Rental income for operating leases is recognized on straight 
line basis with reference to terms of the agreements.

	 Interest:

	 Income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into 
account the amount outstanding and the applicable rate of 
interest.

	 Service charges:

	 Income from service charges is recognised on accrual basis 
in accordance with the terms of the contract entered into in 
respect thereof.

	 Dividend:

	 Income from dividend is recognised when the right to 
dividend has been established.  

	 d) Fixed assets

	 Tangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses(if any). Cost comprises 
the purchase price and any attributable costs of bringing the 
assets to their working condition for their intended use.

	 Intangible assets are stated at the cost of acquisition less 
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (if any).

	 e) Depreciation and amortisation

	 Depreciation on assets is provided based on estimated 
useful life of assets and after considering depreciation rates 
prescribed under respective local laws.

	 Intangible assets, except for goodwill are amortised over their 
estimated useful life as follows:

	 Brand equity: 20 years

	 Computer software: 5 years

	 f) Investments

	 Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held 
for not more than a year are classified as current investments. 
All other investments are classified as long-term investments.

	 Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value 
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determined on an individual investment basis.

	 Long-term investments are carried at cost; however, provision 
for diminution in value is made to record other than temporary 
diminution in the value of such investments.

	 g) Inventories 

	 Inventories are valued as follows:

	 Raw materials, stores and spares and packaging materials

	 Lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on 
‘First In First Out’ basis and includes interest as a carrying cost 
of materials where such materials are stored for a substantial 
period of time.

	 Work in progress

	 At raw material cost and a proportion of direct and indirect 
overheads upto estimated stage of completion.

	 Finished goods

	 Lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost 
of raw materials, direct and indirect overheads which are 
incurred to bring the inventories to their present location and 
condition. 

	 h) Foreign currency transaction

	 Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting 
currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the 
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the 
foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

	 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary 
items or on reporting respective company’s monetary items at 
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded 
during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, 
are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which 
they arise.

	 Monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign 
currency are translated at the exchanged rate prevailing 
at the date of balance sheet. The resulting difference is also 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

	 The exchange differences arising on forward contracts 
to hedge foreign currency risk of an underlying asset or 
liability existing on the date of the contract are recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss of the period in which the 
exchange rates change, based on the difference between:

	 i)	 foreign currency amount of a forward contract translated 
at the exchange rates at the reporting date, or the 
settlement date where the transaction is settled during 
the reporting period, and 

	 ii)	 the same foreign currency amount translated at the 
latter of the date of the inception of the contract and the 
last reporting date, as the case may be. 

	 The premium or discount on all such contracts arising at the 
inception of each contract is amortised as expense or income 
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over the life of the contract.

	 Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward 
foreign exchange contracts is recognised as income or 
expense for the year upon such cancellation or renewal.

	 Forward exchange contracts entered to hedge the foreign 
currency risk of highly probable forecast transactions and 
firm commitments are marked to market at the balance sheet 
date if such mark to market results in exchange loss. Such 
exchange loss is recognised in the profit and loss account 
immediately. Any gain is ignored and not recognised in the 
financial statements, in accordance with the principles of 
prudence enunciated in Accounting Standard 1- Disclosure of 
Accounting Policies.

	 i) Employee benefits

	 Provident fund

	 The Group companies in India make contribution to statutory 
provident fund in accordance with Employees Provident Fund 
and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 which is a defined 
contribution plan. Contribution paid / payable is recognised 
as an expense in the period in which the services are rendered 
by the employee.

	 Gratuity

	 Gratuity is a post-employment benefit and is in the nature of 
defined benefit plan. The liability recognised in the balance 
sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date.

	 The defined benefit/ obligation is calculated at the balance 
sheet date by an independent actuary using projected unit 
credit method. The actuarial gains or losses are recognised 
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

	 Compensated absences

	 Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due 
and expected to be availed within one year from the balance 
sheet date is recognised on the basis of undiscounted value 
of estimated amount required to be paid or estimated value 
of benefits expected to be availed by the employees. Liability 
in respect of compensated absences becoming due and 
expected to be availed more than one year after the balance 
sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation 
performed by an independent actuary using the projected 
unit credit method as on March 31, 2012. The actuarial gains 
or losses are recognised immediately in the statement of 
profit and loss.

	 Share-based payment

	 The Company operates an equity-settled share-based plan for 
its employees. Where persons are rewarded using share-based 
payments, the fair values of services rendered by employees 
are determined indirectly by reference to the fair value of 
the equity instruments granted. This fair value is appraised 
using the Black Scholes model at the respective measurement 
date. In the case of employees, the fair value is measured at 
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the grant date. The fair value excludes the impact of non-
market vesting conditions. All share-based remuneration is 
recognized as an expense in statement of profit and loss with 
a corresponding credit to ‘share option reserve’.

	 If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the 
expense is allocated over the vesting period, based on the best 
available estimate of the number of share options expected 
to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included in 
assumptions about the number of options that are expected 
to become exercisable. Estimates are subsequently revised, 
if there is any indication that the number of share options 
expected to vest differs from previous estimates and any 
impact of the change is recorded in the year in which change 
occurs.

	 Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received up to 
the nominal value of the shares issued are allocated to share 
capital with any excess being recorded as securities premium 
reserve.

	 Other short term benefits

	 Expense in respect of other short term benefits are recognised 
on the basis of amount paid or payable for the period during 
which services are rendered by the employees.

	 j) Borrowing costs

	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or 
construction of fixed assets, which necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use 
are capitalised. 

	 Borrowing cost which are not relatable to qualifying asset 
are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred.

	 k) Earning per share

	 Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit 
or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by 
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period. 

	 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, 
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of 
all dilutive potential equity shares.

	 l) Income tax

	 Provision for tax for the year comprises estimated current 
income-tax determined to be payable in respect of taxable 
income and deferred tax being the tax effect of temporary 
timing differences representing the difference between 
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taxable and accounting income that originate in one period 
and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods 
and is calculated in accordance with the relevant domestic 
tax laws. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates 
and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted as at the 
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only 
to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available against which such 
deferred tax assets can be realised. In respect of carry forward 
losses and unabsorbed depreciation, deferred tax assets are 
recognised only to the extent there is virtual certainty that 
sufficient future taxable income will be available against 
which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

	 Minimum alternate tax (“MAT”) payable under the provisions 
of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognised as an asset in the 
year in which credit becomes eligible and is set off in the year 
in which the Group companies become liable topay income 
taxes at the enacted tax rates.

	 m) Contingent liabilities and provisions

	 The Group makes a provision when there is a present 
obligation as a result of a past event where the outflow of 
economic resources is probable and a reliable estimate of the 
amount of the obligation can be made.

A disclosure is made for a contingent liability when there is a:

	 a)	 possible obligation, the existence of which will be 
confirmed by the occurrence/non-occurrence of one or 
more uncertain events, not fully with in the control of 
the Group;

	 b)	 present obligation, where it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation;

	 c)	 present obligation, where a reliable estimate cannot be 
made.

	 n) Impairment of assets

	 The Group on an annual basis makes an assessment of any 
indicator that may lead to impairment of assets. If any such 
indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount 
of the assets. If such recoverable amount is less than the 
carrying amount, then the carrying amount is reduced to 
its recoverable amount by treating the difference between 
them as impairment loss and is charged to the profit and loss 
account. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that 
if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the 
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at 
the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated 
historical cost.
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3.	 Share capital 
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Number  Amount Number  Amount 

Authorised share capital
-Equity shares  of  ` 10 each  30,000,000  3,000.00  30,000,000  3,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 
capital

-Equity shares  of  ` 10 each  26,118,414  2,611.84  26,118,414  2,611.84 
Total Issued, subscribed and fully paid 
up capital 

 26,118,414  2,611.84 26,118,414  2,611.84 

a)	 There is no movement in the equity share capital during the current and previous year.

b)	 Terms/rights attached to equity shares

	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having the par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one 
vote per share. 

	 The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees.

	 During the year ended March 31, 2012 the amount of per share dividend recognised as distributions to equity shareholders was nil 
(previous year ` 1 per share).

	 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, 
after payment of all liabilities. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c)	  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares of the company 

 Number  % shareholding  Number  % shareholding 
Equity shares of ` 10 each
 India Agri Business Fund Limited  3,835,015  14.68  3,835,015  14.68 
 Ashwani Arora  3,526,312  13.50  3,526,312  13.50 
 Surinder Arora  3,374,912  12.92  3,374,912  12.92 
 Gurucharan Dass Arora  2,128,692  8.15  2,128,692  8.15 
 Ashok Kumar Arora  2,107,640  8.07  2,107,640  8.07 
 Vijay Kumar Arora  1,921,124  7.36  1,921,124  7.36 

d)	 Details of equity shares issued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid up by way 
of bonus issues and brought back during the last 5 years are as follow:

Year ended  Face Value  Bonus issue  
(number of Shares) 

 March 31, 2007 10.00  7,234,550

e)	  Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares / disinvestments

	 ‘The Company had reserved issuance of 6,48,329 ( Previous year Nil) Equity shares of ` 10 each  for offering to eligible employees of 
the Company and its subsidiaries under Employees Stock Option Plan (ESOP). During the year, the Company had issued and allotted 
NIL (Previous year Nil) equity shares to eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries under ESOP. The option would vest 
over a maximum period of 4 years or such other period as may be decided by the Employees Stock Compensation Committee from 
the date of grant based on specific criteria.
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4.	 Reserves and surplus
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Capital reserve/subsidy  [A]  108.61  108.61 
Securities premium reserve  [B]  6,715.61  6,715.61 
General reserve [C] 

Balance at the beginning of the year  1,033.84  872.04 
Add : Additions during the year  -    161.80 
Balance at the end of the year  1,033.84  1,033.84 

Share options outstanding amount [D] 
Balance at the beginning of the year  -    -   
Add : Additions made during the year  71.08  -   
Balance at the end of the year  71.08  -   

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss [E] 
Balance at the beginning of the year  14,899.17  13,138.21 
Add : Transferred from statement of profit and loss  (201.52)  2,519.52 
Less : Final / interim dividend proposed or paid  -    (303.60)
Less : Tax on dividend distributed  -    (49.25)
Less : Transfer to general reserve  -    (161.80)
Less : Share of minority  79.90  (243.91)
Balance at the end of the year  14,777.55  14,899.17 

Foreign currency translation reserve [F]  158.94  36.45 
Total reserves and surplus [A+B+C+D+E+F]  22,865.63  22,793.68 

5.	  Long term borrowings
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
 Non current  Current  Non current  Current 

Secured
Term loans

From banks
 -Term loans  12,301.71  6,428.28  10,080.79  4,302.10 
 -Vehicle loans  200.94  75.41  94.24  59.40 

 12,502.65  6,503.69  10,175.03  4,361.50
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a)	 Rupee term loan comprises of the following :
(` In lacs)

Name of the bank  Amount of 
Sanction 

Year of 
Sanction

No of installments  Amount of 
installments 

 As at March 
31, 2012 

 As at March 
31, 2011 

( in ` lacs) ( in ` lacs) ( in ` lacs) ( in ` lacs)
Oriental Bank of 
Commerce

 1,050.00 2010-11 12 equal quarterly  87.50  437.50  787.50 

Oriental Bank of 
Commerce

 1,200.00 2010-11 5 equal yearly  240.00  394.00  745.00 

Oriental Bank of 
Commerce

 500.00 2008-09 20 equal quarterly  25.00  184.58  284.58 

Oriental Bank of 
Commerce

 500.00 2009-10 20 equal quarterly  25.00  239.30  314.30 

Oriental Bank of 
Commerce

 675.00 2008-09 12 equal quarterly  56.25  112.50  281.25 

Oriental Bank of 
Commerce

 500.00 2011-12 12 equal quarterly  41.66  374.73  309.56 

Oriental Bank of 
Commerce

 1,710.00 2011-12 12 equal quarterly  142.50  1,425.00  -   

Corporation Bank  270.00 2010-11 12 equal quarterly  22.50  45.00  135.00 
Corporation Bank  500.00 2005-06 20 equal quarterly  25.00  -    50.00 
Corporation Bank  500.00 2007-08 20 equal quarterly  25.00  40.00  80.00 
State Bank of Hyderabad  1,550.00 2010-11 10 equal quarterly  155.00  310.00  1,085.00 
Allahabad Bank  3,750.00 2010-11 24 equal quarterly  156.25  2,722.00  2,725.00 
Allahabad Bank  2,700.00 2011-12 32 equal quarterly  156.25  2,526.00  1,460.00 
Allahabad Bank  250.00 2011-12 12 equal quarterly  22.50  21.90  -   
HDFC Bank  900.00 2010-11 equal monthly 

installments
 26.47  179.04  444.11 

ICICI Bank  1,000.00 2010-11 12 equal quarterly  83.33  666.66  1,000.00 
Punjab National Bank  500.00 2008-09 20 equal quarterly  25.00  198.69  298.69 
Punjab National Bank  500.00 2008-09 20 equal quarterly  25.00  146.84  246.84 
Bank of Baroda, Deira, 
Dubai

 304.87 2010-11 180 equal monthly  0.12  282.72  265.22 

Allahabad Bank  USD 10.00 
million 

2011-12 USD 0.25 million for 4 
quarterly installments 

then USD 0.75 million per 
quarter 

 USD 0.25 
Million 

 2,557.83  -   

Axis Bank  USD 13.00 
million 

2008-09 16 equal quarterly  332.52  2,835.65  2,495.12 

Allahabad Bank  2,500.00 2011-12 12 equal quarterly  208.40  2,291.68  -   
Dena Bank  77.97 2011-12 72 equal monthly  20.83  77.96  -   
State Bank of India  2,395.00 2011-12 12 equal monthly  27.33  660.41  1,170.22 
State Bank of Hyderabad  1,370.00 2009-10 19 equal quarterly  72.11  -    205.48 

 18,729.99  14,382.87 

The interest on above term loans from banks are linked to the respective banks base rates which are floating in nature. As of March 31, 
2012, the interest rate ranges from 11.50 % to 15.50 % on rupee term loan and 3.00% to 6.50% on foreign currency term loan per annum.
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b)	 Vehicle loan comprises of the following :
(` In lacs)

Name of the bank  Amount of 
Sanction 

Year of 
Sanction

No of  
installments

 Amount of 
installments 

 As at March 31, 
2012 

 As at March 31, 
2011 

HDFC Bank  6.15 2008-09 48  0.20  2.23  4.26 
HDFC Bank  10.00 2009-10 48  0.32  5.06  8.26 
HDFC Bank  17.00 2009-10 48  0.54  8.60  14.04 
HDFC Bank  9.65 2008-09 48  0.25  0.73  3.50 
HDFC Bank  11.75 2008-09 48  0.30  0.90  4.26 
HDFC Bank  11.75 2008-09 48  0.30  0.90  4.27 
HDFC Bank  11.75 2008-09 48  0.30  0.90  4.26 
HDFC Bank  11.75 2008-09 48  0.30  0.90  4.26 
HDFC Bank  11.75 2008-09 48  0.30  0.90  4.27 
HDFC Bank  7.50 2010-11 72  0.19  5.25  6.96 
HDFC Bank  7.50 2010-11 72  0.19  5.25  6.96 
HDFC Bank  7.00 2011-12 72  0.23  6.67  -   
HDFC Bank  8.00 2011-12 36  0.26  6.19  -   
ICICI Bank  17.83 2010-11 60  0.38  13.59  16.60 
ICICI Bank  60.00 2010-11 60  1.27  48.04  57.84 
ICICI Bank  6.45 2006-07 58  0.14  -    0.40 
Tata Capital  31.47 2008-09 36  1.02  -    3.02 
ICICI Bank  39.00 2006-07 60  0.82  -    7.02 
HDFC Bank  7.50 2008-09 60  0.16  1.83  3.46 
HDFC Bank  19.07 2011-12 48  0.50  15.68  -   
HDFC Bank  19.07 2011-12 48  0.50  15.68  -   
HDFC Bank  19.10 2011-12 48  0.49  17.14  -   
HDFC Bank  19.10 2011-12 48  0.49  17.13  -   
HDFC Bank  19.10 2011-12 48  0.49  17.13  -   
HDFC Bank  19.10 2011-12 48  0.49  17.13  -   
HDFC Bank  19.10 2011-12 48  0.49  17.13  -   
HDFC Bank  19.10 2011-12 48  0.49  17.13  -   
HDFC Bank  19.10 2011-12 48  0.49  17.13  -   
HDFC Bank  19.10 2011-12 48  0.49  17.13  -   

 276.35  153.64 

The interest on above term loans from banks are linked to the respective banks base rates which are floating in nature. As of March 31, 
2012, the interest rate ranges from 8.50 % to 11.50 % per annum.

c)	 Details of security for each type of borrowings :

	 (i)	 Rupee term loan from all banks are secured against first pari passu charge on the existing project assets, excluding assets 
charged specifically to the term lenders and Second Pari Passu on current assets of the Company. 

	 (ii)	 Rupee term loan from Allahabad Bank is secured against first exclusive charge over the entire fixed assets created under the 
Varpal, Amritsar project. Second charge on current assets on reciprocal basis with ceding of second charge on the fixed assets 
in favour of working capital loan bankers.

	 (iii)	 Rupee term loan from Allahabad Bank is secured against first exclusive charge over the entire fixed assets of the Silos project 
located at Amritsar. Second pari -passu charge over fixed assets of Bahalgarh unit along with equitable mortgage over land and 
building on pari passu basis to secure entire credit facilities sanctioned by consortium.

	 (iv)	 USD term loan from Axis Bank is secured by pledge of shares of Kusha held by LT Overseas North America, Inc. and assignment 
of “Daawat” and “heritage” brands held by LT Foods limited.

	 (v)	 USD term loan from Allahabad Bank is secured by assignment of “Kusha” brand.

	 (vi)	 Vehicle loans from  all banks are secured against hypothecation of respective motor vehicle financed.
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6.	 Deferred taxes
(` In lacs)

  March 31, 2012   March 31, 2011 
Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of :

Depreciation and amortisation  847.06  762.52 
Keyman insurance policy  74.26  68.00 
Deferred revenue expenditure  -    18.01 
Others  16.67  -   

 937.99  848.53 
Deferred tax assets arising on account of :

Provision for employee benefits  (413.93)  (23.93)
Provision for employee stock option plan  (23.06)  -   
Provision for doubtful debts  (54.13)  -   
Diminution in value of investment  (18.22)  -   
Expenses disallowed for tax computation  -    (53.29)
Others  (0.37)  (42.21)

 (509.71)  (119.43)
 428.28  729.10 

7.	 Other long term liabilities
(` In lacs)

  March 31, 2012   March 31, 2011 
Security deposits from distributor  15.83  8.83 

 15.83  8.83 

8.	 Provisions

(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
 Long term  Short term  Long term  Short term 

Provisions for employee benefits (Also refer 
note (a) below)

 107.09  14.46  96.63  -   

Proposed dividend to equity shareholders  -    -    -    303.60 
Dividend tax  -    -    -    49.25 
Provision for taxation (net of advance tax)  130.14  540.45  -    589.53 
Others  -    99.75  -    -   

 237.23  654.66  96.63  942.38 

a)	 Employee benefits (Gratuity)

	 The parent company has a funded gratuity plan and subsidiaries have unfunded plans, for the purpose of funded gratuity obligation 
the parent company makes contribution to the LT Overseas Gratuity Fund, which is administered by its trustees. The trust further 
makes contribution to Life Insurance Corporation of India which administers its fund. Information regarding planed assets disclosed 
below has been obtained by the parent company from Life Insurance Corporation of India.
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(` In lacs)
  March 31, 2012   March 31, 2011 

 (Funded)  (Non funded)  (Funded)  (Non funded) 
Change in projected benefit obligation
Projected benefit obligation at the 
beginning of the year

 123.92  11.39  93.48  15.76 

Current service cost  25.14  4.53  18.66  7.63 
Interest cost  10.84  1.00  5.84  0.93 
Actuarial (gain) / loss  (1.49)  0.22  16.58  (1.47)
Benefits paid  (5.62)  -    (10.64)  -   
Past service Cost  -    -    (4.46)
Projected benefit obligation at the end of 
the year

 152.79  17.14  123.92  18.39 

Change in plan assets
 (Funded)  (Funded) 

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of 
the year

 84.78  79.90 

Expected return on plan assets  8.65  7.06 
Employer contributions  18.76  8.46 
Benefits paid  (5.62)  (10.64)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the 
year

 106.57  84.78 

Reconciliation of present value of obligation on the fair value of plan assets

(` In lacs)
  March 31, 2012   March 31, 2011 

 (Funded)  (Non funded)  (Funded)  (Non funded) 
Present value of projected benefit 
obligation at the end of the year

 169.92  123.92 

Funded status of the plans  106.57  84.78 
Liability recognised in the balance sheet  63.35  39.14 

Components of net gratuity costs are
Service cost  25.14  4.53  18.66  7.63 
Interest cost  10.84  1.00  5.84  0.93 
Expected returns on plan assets  (8.65)  -    (7.06)  -   
Past service cost  -    -    (4.46)
Recognized net actuarial (gain)/ loss  (1.49)  0.22  16.58  (1.47)
Net gratuity costs  25.84  5.75  34.02  2.63 

Assumptions used
Discount rate 8.75% 8.75% 8.25% 8.25%
Long-term rate of compensation increase 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of return on plan assets 9.15% N.A. 8.57% N.A.
Average remaining life 23.70  23.70 to 24.10  23.70  24.80 to 26.70 

The Company assesses these assumptions with the projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards.

9.	 Short-term borrowing
(` In lacs)

  March 31, 2012   March 31, 2011 
Secured

From banks  101,966.58  89,351.22 
Unsecured

Loans repayable on demand
From banks  34.97  7,539.77 
From directors  28.68  26.53 

From other parties  1,019.95  123.99 
 103,050.18  97,041.51 
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a)	 The cash credits/working capital demand loans is repayable on demand and the interest on above term loans from bank are linked 
to the respective banks base rates which are floating in nature. The interest rate ranges from 11.50 % to 15.50 % on rupee working 
capital loan and 3.00% to 6.50% on foreign currency working capital loans.						    

b)	 Cash credits/ working capital demand loans are secured by hypothecation of  stocks and book debts of the Company.

10.	 Trade payables
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Dues to micro and small enterprises (Also, refer note (a) below)  403.35  220.38 
Other sundry creditors  6,826.69  7,182.48 
Acceptances  12.98  1,020.44 

 7,243.02  8,423.30 

a)	 Due to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 
2006	

Principal amount remaining unpaid  403.35  220.38 
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end  -  - 

The management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the 
definition of micro and small enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 . 
Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2012 has been made in the financial 
statements based on information received and available with the Company. Further in the view of the management, the impact of interest, 
if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the (MSMED) Act, 2006 is not expected to be material.

11.	 Other current liabilities
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Current maturity of long term debts (refer to note 5)  6,503.69  4,361.49 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  127.79  92.18 
Unclaimed dividend *  11.18  9.38 
Forward payable (net)  -    62.81 
Advances form customers  464.75  574.24 
Other liabilities  1,137.56  2,412.96 
Security deposits from customer  -    -   

 8,244.97  7,513.06 
* Not due for deposit to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

12.	 Tangible assets
(` In lacs)

a) Gross block  Land 
freehold 

Land  
leasehold 

Buildings Plant and   
machinery 

Furniture   
and 

fixtures 

Office   
equipment 

Vehicle Total 

Balance as at April 
01, 2010

3,498.04 434.08 3,874.00 14,167.25 225.19 587.59 1,066.61  23,852.76 

Additions 442.17 162.64 1,573.39 4,979.74 84.45 168.71 323.30  7,734.40 
Disposals  -    -   (14.59) (266.60)  -   (0.97) (48.19)  (330.35)
 - Foreign exchange 
fluctuation

(8.01)  -   (20.14) (96.04) (6.26) 1.48 (21.24)  (150.21)

 - Borrowing costs  -    -    -   92.93  -    -    -    92.93 
Balance as at 
March 31, 2011

3,932.20 596.72 5,412.66 18,877.28 303.38 756.81 1,320.48 31,199.53 

Additions 375.82  -   3,285.63 4,185.91 98.88 159.75 397.80  8,503.79 
Disposals  -    -    -   (104.45) (1.51) (20.45) (44.33)  (170.74)
 - Foreign exchange 
fluctuation

56.27  -   121.86 37.69 7.80 5.50 6.81  235.93 

 - Borrowing costs  -    -    17.91  67.70  -    -    -    85.61 
Balance as at 
March 31, 2012

4,364.29 596.72 8,838.06 23,064.13 408.55 901.61 1,680.76 39,854.12 
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b) Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 
01, 2010

 -    -    1,034.19  6,443.49  90.84  318.18  624.23  8,510.93 

Depreciation charge  -    -    265.70  1,827.91  22.67  91.41  145.90  2,353.59 
Reversal on disposal 
of assets

 -    -    (1.24)  (171.94)  (0.22)  (0.30)  (22.67)  (196.37)

Translation Reserve  -    -   (31.55) (27.74) 0.16 1.55 (42.35)  (99.93)
Balance as at 
March 31, 2011

 -    -    1,267.10  8,071.72  113.45  410.84  705.11  10,568.22 

Depreciation charge  -    -    442.41  2,302.58  53.10  110.65  230.45  3,139.19 
Reversal on disposal 
of assets

 -    -    -    (70.89)  (0.36)  (8.75)  (34.63)  (114.63)

Translation reserve  -    -   7.84 27.80 2.50 4.30 4.22  46.66 
Balance as at 
March 31, 2012

 -    -    1,717.35  10,331.21  168.69  517.04  905.15  13,639.44 

Net block
Balance as at 
March 31, 2012

 4,364.29  596.72  7,120.71  12,732.92  239.86  384.57  775.61  26,214.68 

Balance as at March 
31, 2011

 3,932.20  596.72  4,145.56  10,805.56  189.93  345.97  615.37  20,631.31 

13.	 Intangible assets
(` In lacs)

a. Gross block  Goodwill  Brands/Trademarks  Computer software  Total 
Balance as at April 01, 2010  7,509.68  300.00  -    7,809.68 
Additions  8.41  -    -    8.41 
 - Foreign exchange fluctuation (516.80)  -    -    (516.80)
Balance as at March 31, 2011  7,001.29  300.00  -    7,301.29 
Additions  30.79  -    14.29  45.08 
Disposals (192.02)  -    -    (192.02)
 - Foreign exchange fluctuation  888.39  -    -    888.39 
Balance as at March 31, 2012  7,728.45  300.00  14.29  8,042.74 
b. Accumulated depreciation  466.76  150.00  -    616.76 
Balance as at April 01, 2010
Depreciation charge*  227.22  15.00  -    242.22 
 - Foreign exchange fluctuation  91.57  -    -    91.57 
Balance as at March 31, 2011  785.55  165.00  -    950.55 
Depreciation charge  239.04  15.00  2.75  256.79 
 - Foreign exchange fluctuation  -    -    -    -   
Balance as at March 31, 2012  1,024.59  180.00  2.75  1,207.34 
Net block
Balance as at March 31, 2012  6,703.86  120.00  11.54  6,835.40 
Balance as at March 31, 2011  6,215.74  135.00  -    6,350.74 

*includes impairment loss of ` 219.73 lacs (previous year 219.73 lacs) on goodwill owing to reduction in value of subsidiary Kusha Inc.
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14.	 Non-current investments 
	 (Valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
 Trade  Others  Trade  Others 

Investments in equity instruments 
(unquoted)
-L T Infotech Private Limited of ` 10 
each

 4.25  -    4.25  -   

Less: Provision for diminution in value 
of investment

 (4.25)  -    -    -   

 -    -    4.25 
(ii) Keyman insurance policies  232.89  -    211.61  -   

Other investments- Quoted
(a) 2,300 (previous year 2,300) equity 

shares - Andhra bank of ` 10 each fully 
paid up

 -    0.23  -    0.23 

(b) Investment in mutual funds (quoted)
50,000 (previous year 50,000) units of 
Principal PNB Long Term Equity Fund

 -    5.00  -    5.00 

48,875.855 (previous year 48,875.855) 
units of Templeton India Equity 
Income Growth Fund

 -    5.00  -    5.00 

12,999.619 (previous year 12,999.619) 
units of HDFC MIP Long Term Dividend 
Fund

 -    1.50  -    1.50 

2,023.636 (previous year 2,023.636) 
units of Sundram BNP Paribas Select 
Midcap Dividend Plan

 -    0.30  -    0.30 

894.055 (previous year 894.055) units 
of Reliance Vision Fund

 -    0.40  -    0.40 

Other investments- Unquoted
Fully paid-up equity shares 
(unquoted)

(a)  500 (previous year 500) equity shares 
of India International Marketing 
Limited of ` 10 each fully paid up.

 -    0.05  -    0.05 

(b) 13,50,000 (previous year Nil) equity 
shares  of Express Warehousing 
Limited

 -    135.00  -    -   

(c) Investment in Mutual funds
 1,000,000 (previous year 1000,000) 
units of ` 10 each of CIG Realty Fund

 -    100.00  -    100.00 

(d) In Government securities
National Saving Certificate  -    0.22  -    0.22 

 232.89  247.70  215.86  112.70 
Aggregate amount of :
Quoted investments  -    12.43  -    12.43 
Unquoted investments  232.89  235.27  215.86  100.27 
Market value of quoted investments  -    14.38  -    19.33 
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15.	  Loans and advances 
(` In lacs)

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
 Long term  Short term  Long term  Short term 

Unsecured, considered good unless 
otherwise stated
Capital advances  213.44  -    418.71  -   
Security deposits  503.88  11.52  426.68  74.52 
Minimum alternative tax credit receivable  -    997.68  -    820.13 
Advance income tax (net of provision for 
tax)

 841.61  390.68  746.02  436.14 

Balances with central excise authorities  262.20  22.86  -    406.80 
 1,821.13  1,422.74  1,591.41  1,737.59 

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or 
value to be received
 - Unsecured, considered good  171.51  6,806.30  17.61  3,516.46 
 - Consider doubtful
 - Provision for doubtful advances
 - Consider doubtful  -    49.71  -    -   
 - Provision for doubtful advances  -    (49.71)  -    -   

 171.51  6,806.30  17.61  3,516.46 
 1,992.64  8,229.04  1,609.02  5,254.05 

16.	 Other current assets
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
 Non current Current  Non current  Current 

Interest accrued but not due on fixed 
deposits

 -    29.09  -    18.48 

Deferred premium on forward contacts  -    14.10  -    12.93 
Forward receivable (net)  -    4.02  -    -   
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 
12 months (refer note 19)

 193.67  -    127.41  -   

Others  192.03  -    -    58.82 
 385.70  47.21  127.41  90.23 

17.	 Inventories (valued at cost or lower of net realisable value)
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Paddy  42,956.05  49,381.50 
Bardana  1,479.87  1,354.43 
Packaging Material  790.64  681.00 
Finished goods  36,094.55  29,972.07 
Traded goods  1,322.05  281.74 
Stores and spares  313.28  258.79 

 82,956.44  81,929.53 

18.	 Trade receivables
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment

Unsecured considered good  874.74  419.43 
Considered doubtful  151.53  31.22 

 1,026.27  450.65 
Less : Allowances for bad and doubtful debts  (151.53)  (31.22)

 874.74  419.43 
Other debts :
Unsecured considered good  25,862.03  27,663.96 

 26,736.77  28,083.39 
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19.	 Cash and bank balances
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
 Non-current  Current  Non-current  Current 

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash in hand
In Indian currency  -    85.20  -    645.61 
In foreign currencies  -    8.97  -    1.17 

Balances with banks 
- in current accounts  -    3,947.88  -    1,111.65 
- in deposit account (with maturity upto 
3 months)

 -    1,346.44  -    883.69 

Other bank balances:
Unpaid dividend account  -    11.17  -    9.38 
Balances with bank held as margin money  -    23.96  -    17.51 
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 
12 months

 193.67  -    127.41  -   

 193.67  5,423.62  127.41  2,669.01 
Less : Amounts disclosed as Other non-
current assets (Refer note 16)

 (193.67)  -    (127.41)  -   

 -    5,423.62  -    2,669.01 

20	 Revenue from operation
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Sale of products
Rice  131,031.17  108,507.67 
Other items  10,498.40  14,277.83 

 141,529.57  122,785.50 
Sale of services  646.87  3,256.08 

 142,176.44  126,041.58 

21.	 Other income
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Dividend from non trade investments  0.10  0.15 
Profit from sale of fixed assets (net)  1.63  27.38 
Interest on bank fixed deposits  137.15  61.67 
Export incentive  52.81  -   
Amounts written back  4.32  -   
Other receipts  765.28  412.14 
Rental income  21.00  9.92 
Profit from exchange fluctuation  -    7.90 
Service charges  391.55  -   

 1,373.84  519.16 

22.	 Material consumed
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Opening stock

Paddy  49,366.69  34,375.80 
Bardana  1,354.43  879.93 
Packing material  681.00  424.49 

 51,402.12  35,680.22 
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* The Company maintains an equity settled share-based payment 
scheme LT foods employee stock option plan-2010, hereinafter 
referred to as ‘the Plan’) adopted and approved by share-holders on 
September 30, 2010.	

Under the Plan the Board of Directors of the Company has the 
powers to determine, from time to time, the persons eligible for 
grant of share options; when and how each option shall be granted; 
what type or combination of types of option shall be granted; the 
provisions of each option granted, including the time or times 
when a person shall be permitted to receive shares pursuant to an 
option grant. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to 

Consolidated  Notes to the Financial Statements
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Add: purchases
Paddy  47,973.32  68,955.14 
Bardana  664.77  1,164.08 
Packing material  4,323.62  4,321.22 
Broken rice/unpolished rice  10,997.31  11,556.13 
Others  48.95  -   

 64,007.97  85,996.57 
Less: closing stock

Paddy  42,946.86  49,366.69 
Bardana  1,479.87  1,354.43 
Packing material  790.64  681.00 
Others  9.19  -   

 45,226.56  51,402.12 
 70,183.53  70,274.67 

23.	 Other purchases
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Rice (traded)  35,237.33  12,968.01 
Soyabean  265.60  7,079.73 
Maize  2,397.79  -   
Others  2,046.40  1,894.10 

 39,947.12  21,941.84 

24.	 Changes in inventories of finished goods and traded goods
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Opening stock of finished goods

Manufactured goods  30,252.19  32,194.21 
Traded goods  281.74  94.83 

Closing stock of finished goods
Manufactured goods  36,094.56  29,986.89 
Traded goods  1,322.05  281.74 

 (6,882.68)  2,020.41 

25.	 Employee benefit expenses
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Salaries, wages and bonus *  3,740.00  3,039.66 
Contribution to provident and other fund  121.49  132.92 
Staff welfare expenses  152.00  122.43 
Directors’ remuneration  185.60  161.80 
Directors’ remuneration of subsidiary companies  58.69  68.91 

 4,257.78  3,525.72 

repurchase or settle the options. In accordance with the Plan, upon 
vesting, the stock options will be settled by issuance of new shares 
on payment of exercise price.

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is 
determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted. 
The total expense recognized in the income statement for the year 
ended March 31, 2012 is ` 71.08 lacs (March 31, 2011: Nil).

The fair values of options granted were determined using Black 
Scholes option pricing model that takes into account factors specific 
to the share incentive plans along with other external inputs. 
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The following principal assumptions were used in the valuation: 
Expected volatility was determined by assuming that the historical 
volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative 
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual 
outcome. The expected option life, average expected period to 
exercise, is assumed to be equal to the contractual maturity of the 
option. Dividend yield is taken as nil as the Group has not paid any 
dividend.   The risk-free rate is the rate associated with a risk-free 
security with the same maturity as the option. At each balance 
sheet date, the Company reviews its estimates of the number of 
options that are expected to vest. The Company recognizes the 
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income 
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to ‘retained earnings’ 
in equity.`

The inputs to the Black Scholes model for options that have been 
granted during the reporting periods are summarised as follows:

Grant date April 01, 2011
Fair value of option using the Black 
Scholes model(in `)

21.05

Fair value of shares at grant date (INR) 49.5
Exercise price (in `) 38
Expected volatility 67%
Option life (in years) 4
Dividend yield 2.02%
Risk-free interest rate 5.80%

The total outstanding and exercisable share options and weighted 
average exercise prices for the various categories of option holders 
during the reporting periods are as follows: 

Consolidated  Notes to the Financial Statements
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Share options granted to employees and others providing similar services
(` In lacs)

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Number of 

options
Weighted 

average 
exercise price

Weighted 
average 

remaining 
contractual 

life

Number of 
options

Weighted 
average 

exercise price

Weighted 
average 

remaining 
contractual 

life
(in `) (in `)

Balance at beginning of the year  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Granted during the year  648,329  38  -    -    -    -   
Forfeited during the year  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Exercised during the year  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Expired during the year  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Balance at end of the year  648,329  38  -    -    -    -   
Exercisable at end of the year  162,082  38  -    -    -   

26.	 Finance cost
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Interest on working capital loans  8,325.70  3,849.08 
Interest on term loans  2,117.54  1,817.01 

 10,443.24  5,666.09 
Less: Interest capitalised  (85.61)  (92.93)

 10,357.63  5,573.16 
Bank charges  390.51  300.48 

 10,748.14  5,873.64 
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27.	 Other Expenses
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Warehouse rent  78.55  426.17 
Wages  675.03  435.59 
Job work  10.63  3.73 
Factory insurance  47.33  20.05 
Power and fuel  1,627.94  1,362.65 
Security services  135.95  110.71 
Research and development  1.69  1.82 
Packing expenses  249.42  619.09 
Repairs and maintenance
- Machinery  123.13  95.00 
- Building  107.90  67.17 
- Others  73.59  40.25 
Stores and spares consumed  641.73  579.14 
Other manufacturing expenses  97.04  485.44 
Advertisement  1,132.62  940.05 
Insurance  182.54  136.77 
Legal and professional charges  745.76  1,097.48 
Rates and taxes  167.20  99.84 
Donation and charity  31.81  26.61 
Directors’ sitting fees  5.40  -   
Auditors’ remuneration *  52.45  50.47 
Fines and penalties  2.55  2.30 
Rent  534.94  558.89 
Vehicle running and maintenance  130.61  86.04 
Other administrative expenses  876.64  703.13 
Travelling and conveyance  702.07  665.23 
Rebate and discounts  577.21  218.52 
Commission to selling agents  435.65  397.41 
Clearing, forwarding and freight charges  5,328.11  3,792.35 
Market development expenses  47.38  49.47 
Business promotion expenses  700.79  375.29 
Freight outward  1,008.36  491.31 
Other selling expenses  1,074.75  2,207.37 
Loss on sales of fixed assets  3.40  0.09 
Provision for doubtful debts and other amounts written off  70.77  486.72 
Provision for doubtful recoveries  367.11  32.04 
Deferred revenue expenses written off  54.99  25.37 
Loss on exchange fluctuation (net)  40.21  -   
Premium on forward contract  29.11  117.70 
Service charges paid  45.50  -   
Software support services  90.67  80.00 
Preliminary expenses written off  13.20  1.04 

 18,321.73  16,888.30 
* Auditors’ remuneration 
Statutory audit  46.31  41.73 
Tax audit  0.45  1.45 
  Other matters  1.90  4.05 
Out of pocket expenses  0.75  0.48 
Service tax  3.04  2.76 

 52.45  50.47 
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28.	 Prior period items
(` In lacs)

 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011 
Expenditure
Income tax prior years  -    24.43 
Minimum alternative tax  -    21.69 
Miscellaneous expenditure written off  -    178.06 
Input tax credit earlier years  -    11.62 
Others  34.92  16.36 

 34.92  252.16 
Income
Export incentive  -    166.03 
Others  16.53  32.28 

 16.53  198.31 
 18.39  53.85 

29.	 Contingent liabilities
(` In lacs)

Nature of contingency March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
- Income-tax demands * 4,197.51 266.79
- HRDF Demand of Market Committee, Sonepat 30.78 102.03
- Letter of credits opened with Banks on behalf of the Group 162.04 1,010.49
- FCI Demand for differential price/freight/ taxes 339.00 339.00
- Shakti Bhog Foods Limited 
   Demand for Claim of defective goods 35.25 -
- Guarantee given by Group for loan taken by others from banks - 3,000.00
- Liability against duty saved under EPCG licenses issued 4,093.56 1,354.18
Total 8,858.14 6,072.49
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*The demand of  ` 135.18 lacs of AY 2000-01 is disputed and the 
matter is subjudice with Commissioner of Income Tax who has 
directed the Assessing Officer (‘AO’) to provide Remand Report. The 
Parent Company has deposited ` 45.00 lacs against this disputed 
demand.

Departmental appeals for AY 2002-03 and 2006-07 are with Income 
Tax Appellate Tribunal (‘ITAT’) and it has redirected the AO to 
recompute the deduction under section 80IA and 80HHC in the 
case for AY 2002-03 and order of the ITAT is awaited in the case for 
AY 2006-07.

The group on August 19, 2011 received a tax demand of ` 3,889.28 
lacs pursuant to the proceedings initiated by the income tax 
department post the search and seizure procedures on February 
10, 2009. The group has filed appeals against the above mentioned 
orders and no further provisions have been made pending 
conclusion of the appeals”. The management believes that its 
position is likely to be upheld.

30.	 Capital contracts

Capital commitments remaining to be executed and not provided 
for, net of capital advances[` 775.42 lacs (previous year: ` 34.56 
lacs)].

31.	 Related party disclosures

	 In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 
(AS)-18 on “Related Party Disclosures” as prescribed under the 
Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 the names of related 
parties where control exist and/or with whom transactions have 
taken place during the year and description of relationships, as 
identified and certified by the management, are:

(i)	 Names of related parties and description of relationship-	
	 Associates

LT Infotech Private Limited
Cordia LT Communications Private Limited (Subsidiary of LT 
InfotechPrivateLimited)

- Key Management Personnel and their relatives

Name Designation
Vijay Kumar Arora Chairman and Managing Director
Abhinav Arora Son of Managing Director
Surinder Kumar Arora Joint Managing Director
Ashwani Kumar Arora Joint Managing Director
Ashok Kumar Arora President-Punjab Operations
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Transactions with key management persons and their relatives
(` In lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Remuneration paid
Vijay Kumar Arora 78.00 78.00
Ashwani Kumar Arora 59.56 60.00
Surinder Kumar Arora 60.00 60.00
Ashok Kumar Arora 36.00 36.00
Abhinav Arora 49.22 23.05
Perquisites
Ashwani Kumar Arora - -
Surinder Kumar Arora 0.76 8.97
Dividend paid to key management personnel 110.10 158.19
Dividend paid to relatives of key management personnel 38.06 64.04
Interest paid (Ashok Kumar Arora)
Balance at year end
Ashok Kumar Arora

2.39

28.68

2.21

26.53

Transactions with associates
(` In lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Balance receivable at year end
LT Infotech Private Limited 66.73 66.73
Cordia LT Communications Private Limited 32.69 16.41

32.	 Earnings per share
(` In lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders after minority interest and before prior 
period items (` lacs)

(183.11) 2,573.37

Prior period items (excluding tax) (` lacs) 18.39 53.85
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders after minority interest and prior period 
items (` lacs)

(201.50) 2,519.52

Numbers of weighted average equity share outstanding at the year (` lacs) 261.18 261.18
Nominal value of equity share   (`) 10 10
Earnings Per Share after prior period items - Basic and Diluted (`) (0.41) 9.65

33.	 The following subsidiary companies and / or partnership concerns are considered in the consolidated financial statements:

Name of subsidiary Country of 
operations

Percentage of 
holding by LT Foods 

Limited
Subsidiaries
Daawat Foods Limited India 70.48%
Nature Bio Foods Limited India 100.00%
SDC Foods India Limited India   80.00%
LT  International Limited India  89.98%
Sona Global Limited Dubai 100%
LT Overseas North America,Inc USA 100%
Raghuvesh Foods & Infrastructure Limited India 100%
Step subsidiaries
Nice International FZE Dubai 100%
Kusha Inc. USA 100%
LT Foods USA LLC USA 100%
LT Agri Services Private Limited India 100%
Expo Services Private Limited India 80%
Raghuvesh Power Projects Limited India 51%
Name of partnership firm
Raghunath Agro Industries India 100%*

* LT Foods Limited has 4% share and Daawat Foods Limited has 96% share.

Consolidated  Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2012
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Consolidated  Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2012

	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

	 Ashwani Kumar Arora	 Surinder Kumar Arora 
	 Joint Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director

	 Monika Chawla Jaggia	
Place : Gurgaon	 Company Secretary		
Date	 :	July 23, 2012

34.	 The Group is engaged in the business of manufacture and storage of rice, which as per accounting standard 17 on “Segment 
Reporting” as prescribed under the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006, is considered to be the only reportable business 
segment. Accordingly only secondary segment information has been disclosed below.

(` In lacs)

Particulars India North America Rest of the world Total
Revenue:
External 56,408.87 30,889.46 54,878.10 142,176.44
Previous year 51,452.10 30,567.64 44,021.84 126,041.58
Total 56,408.87 30,418.51 55,349.06 142,176.44
Previous year 51,452.10 30,567.64 44,021.84 126,041.58
Segment assets 3,946.31 8,294.42 14,496.03 26,736.77
Previous year 9,139.99 4,644.10 14,299.30 28,083.39
Unallocated assets* 133,098.64
Previous year 124,311.05
Capital expenditure** 8,548.87
Previous year    7,742.81

*The assets, other than receivables, used for earning revenue from geographical locations above are not maintained separately as the 
same is impractical and not feasible.

**Includes addition of fixed assets from capital work in progress (‘CWIP’) and hence movement in CWIP has not been separately disclosed.

35.	 The Group is a lessee under an operating lease. Rental expense for operating lease for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 was 
` 632.90 lacs and ` 558.89 lacs respectively. The Group has not executed any non-cancelable operating leases.

36.	 The remuneration paid to Mr. Vijay Kumar Arora (Managing Director), Mr. Ashwani Kumar Arora (Joint Managing Director) and Mr. 
Surinder Kumar Arora (Joint Managing Director) was approved by the shareholders of the Company and one of its subsidiaries (in 
case of Mr. Ashwani Kumar Arora). However, owing to the insufficient profits during the year, not determinable on the date of such 
approval, the remuneration paid during the year ended March 31, 2012 is in excess of the limits specified under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956 by ` 126.32 lacs. The Company and one of its subsidiaries are taking necessary steps to seek approval from the 
shareholders and Central Government for excess remuneration paid.

37.	 Till the year ended March 31, 2011 the Company was using pre-revised schedule VI to the Companies Act 1956, for preparation and 
presentation of its financial statements. During the year ended March 31, 2012 the revised schedule VI notified under the Companies 
Act 1956, has become applicable to the Company. The Company has reclassified previous year figures to confirm to this year’s 
classification. The adoption of revised schedule VI does not impact recognition and measurement principles followed for preparation 
of financial statements. However, it’s significantly impacts presentation and disclosure made in the financial statements, particularly 
presentation of balance sheet.
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